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Year ended 30 June

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(LABH et )

(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars )

. 1,438 1,358 1,317 1,305 1,186
I Government Subventions

B AR R (B0E B )

392 384 375 369 355
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees (UGC-funded Programmes)
HEEBRA
1,274 1,266 1,261 930 1,040
Income on Self-financed Activities
EEE il
81 81 109 89 107

Donations and Benefactions

BAWH (BEEEHRE)
Number of Students (UGC-funded Programmes)

N

7,689 7,572 7,541 7,552 7,312
Headcount

EAEESELTN

7,383 7,280 7,189 7,139 6,864
Full-time Equivalent

BARMH (AERE)

Number of Students (Self-financed Programmes)

N ¢

25,903 29,126 31,021 33639 34,862
Headcount

WE B (SR 2 HH)

) , 3186 3149 3147 3117 3029
Number of Staff (Full-time Equivalent)

WERR (BETEHRHHRE) (#0)

. . 42,100 42,100 42,100 42,700 42,100
Tuition Fees Per Annum (UGC-funded Full-time Programmes) ($)
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(Expressed in millions of Hong Kong dollars )

W A

3 S Income

A @ 14379 BUFEHK

Government Subventions

B O 1211.2 &% #f K Hby

Tuition, Programme and Other Fees

c @ 1823 FIEERFHERA

Interest and Net Investment Income
D @ 813 BHREEHY

Donations and Benefactions

E @ 2388 MIERKKIA

Auxiliary Services Income

F @ 340 HitugA

Other Income

x i

Expenditure
A @ 18432 HEFFHT

Teaching and Research

B @ 874 HEEH
Library
C @ 997 HREREH
Central Computing Facilities
D @ 1013 HAi¥ERy
Other Academic Services
F 15.2% E O 295 SHE—fH
Management and General
F O 4686 RaEkARMYZ
Premises and Related Expenses
G O 1810 BER—MEFRY
Students and General Education Services
H @ 141 HibiEs)

Other Activities
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5 Years Comparison (The University)

B RAERE MW E
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Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
(UGC-funded Programmes)

SR SE LN
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Overview

The vision of the University is to be a leading research-led
liberal arts university in Asia for the world. We place strong
emphasis on the importance of impact, innovation and academic
excellence. Our Institutional Strategic Plan 2018-28 ("ISP") lays
the foundation for the transformation of the University, setting
bold and ambitious key performance indicators to measure the
progress of our transformation. Our ground-breaking research
in three strategic clusters offers solutions to real-world problems
and brings impact to our society and beyond. The University
continues to foster best student experience, internationalisation

and service-learning.

The 2018-19 financial year under review was the last year of the
2016-19 funding triennium of the University Grants Committee
("UGC™"). Although additional resources was incurred for
the execution of the strategic initiatives under the ISP, it was
gratifying to see that the University concluded the financial
year with a healthy surplus and a strong financial position. For
the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group recorded a surplus of
$256.6 million (2017-18: $209.8 million) while the University
had a surplus of $93.7 million (2017-18: $200.8 million). The net
assets of the Group rose by 5.7% to $4,646.2 million (2017-18:
$4,395.4 million) and those of the University increased by 2.3%
to $4,372.9 million (2017-18: $4,272.5 million) as at 30 June
2019.

Total income of the University for the year ended 30 June 2019
increased slightly by $96.5 million to $3,185.5 million (2017-18:
$3,089.0 million). The increase was mainly attributable to
an increase of $80.3 million in Government Subventions
and an increase of $51.4 million in Tuition, Programme and
Other Fees, and an increase in Auxiliary Services Income of
$18.3 million; offset by a reduction of $52.1 million in Interest
and Net Investment Income due to the sluggish global financial

markets in 2018-19.

Total expenditure of the University was $3,091.8 million for
2018-19 (2017-18: $2,888.1 million). There was an increase of
$203.7 million in total expenditure mainly due to an increase
in staff costs of $107.2 million arising from an upward salary
adjustment, which was in line with the salary increment for

civil servants of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
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Administrative Region ("Government'), as well as the costs of
additional academic staff recruited globally under Talent 100
initiative of the ISP to enhance teaching excellence and bolster
research strength; an increase of $40.9 million in Teaching and
Research costs; and an increase of $43.7 million in Premises and

Related Expenses to enhance infrastructure of the University.

Education Services

The University's Planning Exercise Proposal 2019-22 to the UGC
committed itself to the implementation of new non-manpower
programmes. To bring strategic education benefits to Hong Kong,
we have offered the following four new programmes in the

academic year in September 2019.

The University has strengthened its training for the PhD students
by extending the existing three-year PhD programme to four
years. To widen their research exposure, each PhD student is
required to undertake a three to six months of attachment to
other universities or other forms of international research learning

experience.

In 2018, the University set up a Centre for Innovative Service-
Learning which strives to connect our students and staff to
community partners and to increase credit-bearing courses with a
service-learning component from five in 2017-18 to 40 in 2018-19.
Currently, a total of 50 academic staff and 23 academic units
are involved in providing service-learning opportunities to the

students.

The Tuition, Programme and Other Fees received by the
University for 2018-19 rose by 4.4% to $1,211.2 million (2017-18:
$1,159.8 million). The increase of $51.4 million arose from a
surge of $43.4 million from self-financing academic programmes
and a slight increase of $8.0 million from the UGC-funded

academic programmes of the University.

The expenditure on Teaching, Learning and Research of the
University for 2018-19 increased to $2,131.6 million (2017-18:
$2,006.9 million). The increase of $124.7 million was mainly due
to the annual upward salary adjustment as well as additional

spending to enhance teaching and research facilities.
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The expenditure on Institutional Support of the University
was $960.2 million (2017-18: $881.2 million). The increase of
$79 million was mainly due to campus development and the cost
for renovating a new campus in Tsuen Wan which mainly houses
administrative staff to make room for academic staff and facilities
on the main campuses in Kowloon Tong as well as the annual

upward adjustment in staff costs.

The School of Continuing Education ("SCE") recorded a slight
increase of 0.4% in total income of $397.2 million (2017-18:
$395.7 million) despite the keen competition for secondary school
students amongst institutions offering self-financing programmes.
SCE maintained a stable tuition fee and other income mainly
due to efficient scheduling of its classes and successful leasing
of its unused commercial properties during the year. With the
implementation of stringent control in staff and other operating
costs, the net operating surplus (after depreciation) of SCE

increased to $16.5 million in 2018-19 (2017-18: $10.7 million).

The Beijing Normal University —Hong Kong Baptist University
United International College in Zhuhai ("UIC"), a joint venture
between Beijing Normal University and the University, engaged
a world-renowned mathematician and a Member of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences, Professor Tang Tao, as its second
President in February 2019. With the new senior management on
board, UIC targets to advance its education level by attracting
high-caliber undergraduates and research postgraduates,
promoting research initiatives in "Artificial Intelligence and Big
Data", "History and Culture" and '"Mathematics". In 2018-19,
UIC recorded a net operating surplus of RMB142.3 million
(2017-18: RMB3.3 million). The substantial increase in the net
operating surplus in 2018-19 was mainly attributable to an extra-
ordinary income of RMB105 million from the disposal of an
old campus after commissioning its new campus in 2017. UIC's
total number of undergraduate students is expected to grow
from 6,000 in 2018-19 to 6,200 in 2019-20. In addition to the
upward adjustment in its tuition fee level for newly admitted
undergraduates, UIC will strive to enhance its financial strength by
securing more support for its research initiatives from provincial

authorities and the central government.

With an aim to facilitate immersive learning on the promotion
of business entrepreneurship, the University selected creative-

minded students to participate in a holistic boot camp which



SR o 3k AR B S e
SMEB TR - R R —H 1
o AR -

it & ik B

T 2018-19 4F i - KB 4 - M) of B 5 B o
HaZ %o 0Bz DLk B5HR2 AR @
200 5 o A 2018-19 4 > 22 B IRAS AU A Jy
1.376 M8 7T (2017-18 4E J& © 1.253 f&7C) © WA
S BNV EY S X Gl GN-
R 5 AAE— S B TR L R R o A
[ R > A e 5 A 13 (el
BB R B E PR

Fy e N 1 R AL S PR 8 B A B
bR RS EEREER Y
B S LR A N F0E 9,000 BT 0 BRI
iR T KB — NG & o R Ty B A B
ol (TR BT o 1) o TE B A0 3R 18 15
SREE R REAT AN 2 e e o HE R A R
WHMBEE > H20184F7 H 2 HRR2E
AR o HPF D ERARN P ETE - R4
TEREHE ~ (R FERTAL ~ TR IR 2 IR 2% 2% o i
FREEIR AL o FPy DI RAE B
TR ) A5 v R 5 98 £ 2 o B o £
B -

L ROK 35 1 T A 7 & o] SH IR B 4 & O
NS R RS SRR §23 T
WMWY - MTERFEREREPRELE
HG A WA T AR & S PR LR BN - B
HEWARMZEED - ML 104 O

was conducted by the consultants of UC Berkeley in May 2019.
Students formed teams to pitch their pioneering business ideas,
attended interactive workshops, received one-on-one mentoring

from industry experts and learned in a collaborative environment.

Community Services

In 2018-19, 10 Chinese medicine clinics were operated by the
University. Since the inception of these clinics, cumulative patient
visits have exceeded two million. In 2018-19, total revenue of the
clinics amounted to $137.6 million (2017-18: $125.3 million). The
increase in revenue was mainly due to more patients and slightly
higher consultation fees. The University hosts a community day
at some of its Chinese medicine clinics in May every year. During
the community day, our Chinese medicine practitioners will offer
health talks, free medical consultations and free provision of

Chinese medicine.

To address the challenges caused by an aging population and
the continuously rising number of patients with chronic diseases,
the School of Chinese Medicine established the Hong Kong
Baptist University — Jockey Club Chinese Medicine Disease
Prevention and Health Management Centre (*'Prevention Centre")
with a generous donation of over $90 million from The Hong
Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust. The Prevention Centre, which
comprises consultation rooms for chronic diseases, health
assessment rooms for body constitution and treatment rooms
with state-of-the-art equipment and facilities, has been in full
operation since 12 July 2018. The Prevention Centre also offers
an innovative Chinese medicine platform for health education,
health assessment, preventive healthcare service and cloud health
data management. The Prevention Centre has also launched the
Elderly Sponsorship Programme which provides full and half
price subsidies to senior citizens for various Chinese medicine

healthcare services.

The Lui Seng Chun Chinese medicine clinic in Sham Shui Po
offers free consultations and free Chinese medicine, subject to a
daily quota, to recipients of the Comprehensive Social Security
Assistance. The Lions & Hong Kong Baptist University Chinese

Medicine Charity Foundation Limited provides financial subsidies
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for the University's clinics to offer concessions on consultation
fees to the needy. In the past decade, more than 5,400
privilege cards were given to the elderly and more than 33,000

consultation coupons were utilised by them.

Opened in 2008, the Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre (""JCCAC")
is a self-financed registered charity and a subsidiary of the
University. It operates a multidisciplinary arts and cultural
venue in a renovated factory building which is open to the
public and dedicated to meeting the arts community's need for
affordable arts studios and display facilities. JCCAC helps nurture
young creative talents for Hong Kong and provide a relaxing
environment for the promotion of arts and culture to the public.
By leasing almost all its arts studios, Jockey Club Black Box
Theatre and other facilities to local artists and art groups, JCCAC
recorded a small net operating surplus of $0.3 million (2017-18:

$0.5 million) in its eleventh year of operation.

The University officially became one of the 13 Founding
Members of the Sustainable Procurement Charter of the Green
Council in July 2018. As the sole Founding Member from the
education sector, the University is committed to participating in
and contributing to the advocacy and advancement of sustainable
production and consumption in Hong Kong. The University
continues to dedicate its efforts to promoting a low-carbon and

environmentally sustainable campus.

Other Operations

The Institute for Research and Continuing Education ("IRACE"),
the University's research arm in China, continues to flourish
this year. With the concerted efforts of its staff, IRACE secured
funding of RMB5.5 million for 17 research projects in 2018 (2017:
RMB5.3 million for 19 projects) from the National Natural Science

Foundation of China.

HKBU R&D Licensing Limited ("R&D Licensing") continues
specialising in knowledge transfer and commercialisation of
the University's technologies and intellectual properties. During
the year, R&D Licensing received license income from start-up
companies as well as the funding support from the University for
a film production project. In 2018-19, R&D Licensing recorded
an income of $6.1 million (2017-18: $5.0 million). We are proud

10
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that the innovation and achievements of the University led to
the award of two Gold Medals, one with the Congratulations of
the Jury, as well as a Silver Medal and a Thailand Award for the
Best International Invention at the 47th International Exhibition
of Inventions of Geneva in April 2019. The University also won
the TechConnect Global Innovation Award for its breakthrough
nanostructure for neural stem cell cultivation at the TechConnect
World Innovation Conference and Expo, which was held in June
in the United States. The neural stem cell cultivation technology

has been licensed to a start-up company for further development.

Fundraising Efforts

The University managed to secure donations totalling
$81.3 million in 2018-19 (2017-18: $81.3 million). The UGC
launched the Eighth Matching Grant Scheme (""MGS") for a three-
year period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2022, with an allocation
of $2.5 billion for the application of 10 institutions in the publicly-
funded post-secondary sector on a first-come, first-served basis.
The Eighth MGS, which represents the Government's strong
commitment to the healthy development of this sector, aims
at complementing the institutions' efforts to tap more funding
sources to improve the quality of education. The University has
secured donations totaling more than $500 million for matching
under the Eighth MGS up to 30 August 2019 and will continue
its relentless effort to step up its fundraising initiatives for
supporting various initiatives under the ISP, including endowed
professorships, scholarships to provide global experience to
students and the construction of the student hostel and a Creative
Hub.

The Government has also earmarked $3 billion as matching
grants under the Research Matching Grant Scheme ("RMGS")
designated for research-related purposes. The RMGS opens
for application by 21 local degree-awarding institutions for a
period of three years from 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2022. The
University has geared up its research collaborations with industrial

partners for matching under the RMGS.

On behalf of the University, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude and appreciation to our donors and keen supporters
for their generosity and steadfast support, which has contributed

significantly to the achievement of the ISP in delivering best
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student experience, world-class research and sustainable
academic excellence through investment in people, research

infrastructure and teaching facilities.

Investments

In view of increasing volatility in the financial markets, the
University implemented an enhanced strategic asset allocation
("SAA") for the its Long-term Fund in 2018-19, which targets
less exposure to risky assets, such as equities and real estates
investment trusts, in favour of fixed income and multi-asset fund.
With the enhanced SAA being in place, the University recorded
an investment gain of $182.3 million (2017-18: $234.4 million)
inclusive of the investment gain, at 4.2% of its Long-term Fund
despite retraction of the equity markets in the Asian Pacific

region.

In December 2018, the University received a grant of
$1.16 billion from the Government's Hostel Development Fund
("HDF") for the development of the hostel portion of hostel and
academic building complex ("HABC") on the former Lee Wai
Lee site on Renfrew Road. The HDF grant has been invested
into a mixture of investment vehicles including bank deposits, a
bond fund and a multi-asset fund. For the year ended 30 June
2019, the overall return of HDF grant recorded a gain of 5.6% or
$65.1 million.

The global financial markets continue to be volatile and difficult to
predict, due to a combination of factors, including the escalation
of trade war between the United States and China, intensifying
geopolitical tensions in the Middle East and growing concerns
about slowing global economic growth. It is expected that the
financial markets will continue to be challenging with some major
political events coming into play in the latter half of 2019 and
2020, including the Brexit and the presidential election in the
United States. The University will tap on the expert advice of
the Investment Sub-committee under the Finance Committee to
refine its investment policies and closely monitor the financial
markets. The University has also implemented a triggering event
framework to enable the Investment Sub-committee to have the
agility to make appropriate investment directions when critical

market events occur.
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Capital Projects

Striving to cultivate a global vision and attain the status of one of
the world's most advanced, research-led liberal arts institution,
the University will develop the HABC which is a composite
building to provide 1,726 bed spaces, 1,600 sq.m. of student
activity space and 5,250 sq.m. of academic space. The HABC is

projected to be completed for occupation in 2023-24.

Residential education is a key part of the liberal arts education that
the University offers and the Whole Person Education has been
the central tenet of its education philosophy. The HABC integrates
in a single complex four blocks of student residences, known as
Village CARE (Creative Arena for Residential Education) and a
Creative Hub which will play an essential role in implementing the

best student experience and research excellence.

Village CARE, which provides a broad range of engaging
amenities for students, will develop into an incubator and
powerhouse of talent in the digital world by enhancing the
student learning experience through residential education
within a student-centric infrastructure. Residents from different
nationalities, disciplines and stages of programmes will live,
learn and work together in Village CARE. In this environment,
internationalisation can be promoted and support for local and

non-local students enhanced.

As one of the three research clusters formed to promote research
excellence under the ISP, the Creative Media and Practice
Cluster will be housed in the Creative Hub offering experiential
learning space and state-of-the-art facilities, including a Studio
Complex with five studio suites and a huge scoring stage for the
development of popular music for film, television, video games

and popular songs.

The total cost of the HABC project is estimated at $2.15 billion,
with 75% of the hostel portion being funded by a grant of
$1.16 billion from the HDF while the remaining amount will be
supported by donations and internal resources of the University.
The University has made good progress in soliciting donations
from donors and supporters for the project and will continue its
momentum by implementing various donation initiatives such as

donations for naming rooms in the Village CARE.
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Looking Ahead

The University has forged ahead with the implementation of
its ISP to realise its vision to be a leading research-led liberal
arts university delivering three cornerstone strategic priorities—
the Best Student Experience, Research Excellence and Capacity
Development. With many new academic staff recruited
globally under Talent 100 initiatives of the ISP and the expected
completion of the HABC, a new infrastructure to promote
interdisciplinary research, innovation, and holistic teaching and
learning, the University is well positioned to make its mark in the
liberal arts education and better serve the community in Hong

Kong and beyond.

While the University is proud of its progress in the achievement
of the strategic initiatives under the ISP, it will not lose sight of
the financial challenges arising from the heavy investment in
people and infrastructure in the next few years. We are fortunate
to have the Eighth MGS and RMGS launched by the Government
in July and August 2019 respectively. Riding on these matching
grant schemes, the University has raised more than $500 million

of donations and will continue to build on the good momentum.

As the global financial markets are bumpy and unpredictable, the
University will continue to exercise due care and diligence to
manage its Long-term Fund prudently. We will also plan, prioritise
and manage the allocation of financial resources carefully to
support the long-term development of the University for attaining
its aspiration of being a renowned liberal arts institution in Asia

for the world.

Ms. Rosanna Y.T. Choi
Treasurer

15 October 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO
THE COUNCIL OF HONG KONG BAPTIST UNIVERSITY

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Baptist University ("the University") and its subsidiaries
(together "the Group") set out on pages 20 to 131, which
comprise the consolidated and University Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2019, the consolidated and University
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the consolidated and
University Statements of Changes in Fund Balances and the
consolidated and University Cash Flow Statements for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the University and of the
Group as at 30 June 2019 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (" HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (""HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (""the Code") and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor's report thereon

The Council of the University is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the financial report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of the Council and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
of the University is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Council of the University either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
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material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 26 of Hong
Kong Baptist University Ordinance (Cap. 1126), and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant
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doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 October 2019
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2019

Ba KE
Consolidated University
(AW T oest) Fh 3%
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
KA Income 9
B Government Subventions 2 1,448,196 1,367,850 1,437,948 1,357,602
B R R H A Tuition, Programme and Other Fees 3 1,211,163 1,159,801 1,211,163 1,159,801
FLE g & A Interest and Net Investment Income 4 182,677 234,959 182,267 234,365
B R EE R Donations and Benefactions 5 90,214 87,663 81,276 81,282
HETE AR B A Auxiliary Services Income 6 251,780 233,335 238,863 220,584
oAt Other Income 7 50,585 51,919 33,958 35,339
3,234,615 3135527 3,185,475 3,088,973
X it Expenditure 8,9
HE - BN KR Teaching, Learning and Research
HEE B R Teaching and Research 1,860,313 1,742,495 1,843,205 1,732,957
B Library 87,383 83,661 87,383 83,661
Hh Y BB A Rt Central Computing Facilities 99,797 98,722 99,747 98,669
HAb LB 5 Other Academic Services 99,755 90,053 101,255 91,655
BEE IR Institutional Support
EH R Management and General 299,941 280,610 296,459 277,857
W MOoA BB Premises and Related Expenses 486,199 436,221 468,586 414,236
B R — B E R Students and General Education Services 181,037 173,293 181,037 173,293
ot 35 ) Other Activities 26,587 24,918 14,089 15,810
3,141,012 2,929,973 3,091,761 2,888,138
MR R Surplus from Operations 93,603 205,554 93,714 200,835
MEfLER & AR Z (518 ) /i3E  Share of (Loss)/Profit of an Associate 15 (465) 322 - -
A A He i 2 i as Share of Profits of Joint Ventures 16 163,382 3,927 - -
B A 2 i Surplus before Taxation 256,520 209,803 93,714 200,835
REs Income Tax 34 60 (10) - -
YN Surplus for the Year 256,580 209,793 93,714 200,835
R Attributable to:
KE The University 257,808 210,095 93,714 200,835
FERE L Non-controlling Interests (1,228) (302 - -
256,580 209,793 93,714 200,835
AR TR Surplus for the Year 256,580 209,793 93,714 200,835
AR BE S A 2 i WA Other Comprehensive Income for the Year
R ReE R A ltems that may be reclassified
BB HMER subsequently to surplus or deficit:
AT BT Exchange differences on translation of
WKL financial statements of an overseas 16 (11,195) 6,660 - -
e 50,2550 joint venture
AN 2 ) Exchange differences on translation of
Bz financial statements of overseas (1,246) 853 - -
e 5. 75 % subsidiaries

A B A TH W25 AR Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 244,139 217,306 93,714 200,835
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2019 (Cont'd)

B K
Consolidated University
(PR T et ) i3t
( Expressed} Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
() /& Transfers (from)/to:
Y& A e % General and Development Reserve Fund 10 (19,097) 83,400 (20,317) 82,160
HES Restricted Funds 1 254,852 51,665 103,583 345441 99
HAb A4 Other Funds 12 9,612 82,543 10,448 84131 ——
Je v ke 2z Non-controlling Interests (1,228) 302) - -
AR JE 2 T W 2 4 7 Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 244,139 217,306 93,714 200,835
Wk
Note:

KB 201857 H 1H & KBER (BIBITFIREER]) F99ER (THEM BN H155F  BRIFC LBy - IRITEAFACEL - AW 1D) -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(b).

GRS 28 2 131 FHZ I AA T R L —b s -

The Notes set out on pages 28 to 131 form an integral part of the financial statements.
R @ 220194F 10 A 15 HAZMEAE Rl o

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 15 October 2019.

il B MR
kA R RHIT R
Ms. Rosanna Y. T. Choi Prof. Roland T. Chin Mr. Edmund T. M. Li

Treasurer President & Vice-Chancellor Director of Finance
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019

A N2
Consolidated University
(LHBHET 6T ) Wik
( Expressecl)';n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
IR G A Non-Current Assets
EVQLyE S Investment Properties 13 78 83 78 83
HAth 43 K 45 ¥4 Other Properties and Equipment 132,791,349 2,692,299 2,756,799 2,654,022
2,791,427 2,692,382 2,756,877 2,654,105
B E A F 2 RS Interest in an Associate 15 848 1,313 - -
WA B s Interests in Joint Ventures 16 387,105 234918 146,042 146,042
wa Investments 7 9,988 2,000 11,088 2,100
3,189,368 2,930,613 2,914,007 2,802,247
TG Current Assets
"G Investments 7 5,123,932 3972907 5,123,932 3,972,907
ety Inventories 18 2 10 - .
FEMR R ~ TEATHR 2K Accounts Receivable, Prepayments
JreN and Deposits 19 118,864 131,920 141,695 156,202
FENSBETH Income Tax Recoverable 12 - . .
W Term Deposits 2 568,449 609,769 568,449 609,769
Bl KR BE Cash and Cash Equivalents 21 381,414 273,299 315,347 208,549
6,192,673  4,987905 6,149,423 4,947,427
TREE Current Liabilities
AT PN Deferred Income 2 471,781 706,414 439,395 673,287
AR Contract Liabilities 3 247,199 = 247,199 -
& B fmFIHE Provision for Employee Benefits 24 166,865 172,671 166,580 172,584
JRE AT 2 B M T Accounts Payable and Accruals 2% 363,574 376,208 358,101 371,206
BUR K Government Loans 7 15,964 15,964 15,964 15,964
TR Bank Loans 7 7,612 7773 7,612 7,773
FEATRLIE Income Tax Payable 9 56 - .
1,273,004 1,279,086 1,234,851 1,240,814
B & A A Net Current Assets 4,919,669 3,708,819 4,914,572 3,706,613
Vagars <L IER A=Kt Total Assets less Current Liabilities 8,109,037 6,639,432 7,828,579 6,508,860
JEREAE Non-Current Liabilities
& B AR R Provision for Employee Benefits 2% 116,098 110,520 116,031 110,439
BURFEERK Government Loans 7 111,752 127,716 111,752 127716
SRITEK Bank Loans b 32,728 40,318 32,728 40,318
IR IR Deferred Capital Funds 2 1,998,197 1,965,478 1,991,142 1,957,898
PEFEYTA Deferred Income 2 1,204,049 - 1,204,049 -
B A NET ASSETS 4,646,213 4395400 4,372,877 4,272,489
— Mg R SR A General and Development Reserve Fund 10 396,639 409,866 392,421 406,868
RS Restricted Funds n 2,887,493 2,659,599 2,631,991 2,555,366
HpbRE 4 Other Funds 12 1,349,974 1,312,600 1,348,465 1,310,255
, FUNDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
= o A B il
BRI KM UNIVERSITY 4,634,106 4382065 4,372,877 4,272,489
E R YgEn Non-controlling Interests 12,107 13,335 - -
e TOTAL FUNDS 4,646,213 4395400 4,372,877 4,272,489
Wit -
Note:

KB 201847 11 1H & KIEH (BB AR F9HER (B BIBRA R F155 o WIKC LMW Ty - WENG BAEML o T 1b) -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(b).

GIHAS 28 & 131 HZ Mt AAMB#TE L —

e e

The Notes set out on pages 28 to 131 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019

BAa KE
Consolidated University

(LT A Wi
( Expressed) Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
B Operating Activities
WL Tl 75 Surplus before Taxation 256,520 209,803 93,714 200,835
HEIHE - Adjustments for:
FEHA Interest Income (13,454)  (10,398)  (13,044) 9,797)
B A Dividend Income 4 (65) (66) (65) (66)
e Depreciation 8 221,516 201,398 212,579 194,794
HA A Other Investment Income 4 (24) (30) (24) (37)
RTRNERE By & 73} Loss on Disposal of Other Properties and Equipment 1,013 1,865 713 1,866
BEZEHARER Net Realised and Unrealised

s Gains on Investments 4 (169,134) (223,758)  (169,134)  (223,758)
FH A0 AIE 5 4 T Transfer from Deferred Capital Funds 8 (162,347)  (150,304)  (155,787)  (146,732)
JEAL G BB 2 it Share of Profits of Joint Ventures 16 (163,382) (3927) - -
JEAGH S A F 28518,/ (3s ) Share of Loss/(Profit) of an Associate 15 465 (322) -
SN S FR Foreign Exchange Difference 19 (201) -
BIEE S EN 2 8EER Operating Results before Changes in Working Capital (28,873) 24,060 (31,048) 17,105
FEZWY Decrease in Inventories 8 405 -
FEUIR 2R ~ TARMRR S4k4 2 (Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable,

() /Wb Prepayments and Deposits (12,234) 42473 (10,783) 45,659

HHE B 2
ngﬁrﬁm &Wsﬂﬂﬂ HZ Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Accruals 5,176 (6,760) 4,765 (7,439)

iaj][]/(@/ )
& EARAB# 2 (B) /1A (Decrease)/Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits (228) 4,545 412) 4,734
BHEBEZ Increase in Contract Liabilities 27,080 - 27,080 -
RAENCA Z 3 Increase in Deferred Income 147,278 125,827 141,984 122,035
BEEB TR BE Cash Generated from Operating Activities 138,207 190,550 131,586 182,094
AL Taxation
R/ () AR Hong Kong Profits Tax Refunded/(Paid) 1 42) -
BB R FEE Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities 138,208 190,508 131,586 182,094
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2019 (Cont'd)

e KE
Consolidated University
(LT oes) Bk
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
REHEH Investing Activities
B A Interest Received 13,128 9,255 12,718 8,654
B Dividend Received 65 66 65 66
FERTF R WY Decrease in Term Deposits 41,320 207,417 41,320 207,417
; . Payments for Acquisition of Other

= 2 Yl q
B A 3 A 2 3R Properties and Equipment (317,356)  (230,473)  (310,641)  (226,579)
R BB (T Procezd;.from 'Silf of He]d—to—mgtt;}nty Debt Securities 0690 0690

At i ARATE T B 8% and Financia n§truments witl - , - B

w Embedded Derivatives

- , Net Cash Outflow from Sales/Purchases of

e A A

i %g%z(ég’%i{j fﬂm& Other Debt Securities, Equity Securities and (980,858)  (304,115)  (980,858) (300,276)
A UL Investment Funds

ST A R 2 K Payments for Loan to a Subsidiary - - (1,000) -
BEGH N2 FH % Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,243,701)  (247,160) (1,238,396)  (240,028)
A Financing Activities
I BURTEIEE Grants Received for Other

BER LT E Y& I Properties and Equipment Acquisition 1,237,323 66,834 1,237,323 66,834
BB BUR &R Repayments of Government Loans 2b)  (15,964)  (15,964) (15,964)  (15,964)
TEERATE R Repayments of Bank Loans 21b) (7,751) (9,078) (7,751) (9,078)
ME B T8 e Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 1,213,608 41792 1,213,608 41,792
BeRERB4AZHM,/ (WA ) Netincrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 108,115  (14,860) 106,798 (16,142)
Ba R SR B Z E A Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 273,299 288,159 208,549 224,691
B4 T S R Bl Z AR A A Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the Year 2@ 381,414 273,299 315,347 208,549

it

Note:

ALER 20187 TH B KHERT (BB A ) F99ERE (BB B A ) S 159E o RIFC LI - BRI EARAEA o SAMfaE 1) -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(b).

GIRAS 28 & 131 HZ Mt AAMB#E L~ -

The Notes set out on pages 28 to 131 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2019

ot
Consolidated
— BBk HERS  Hie R At
A BT
General and
Development Non-
T Reserve  Restricted Other  controlling
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Fund Funds Funds Interests Total
(k100 (Fff3E 1) (3t 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
201847 H 1 HE:R Balance as at 1 July 2018 409,866 2,659,599 1,312,600 13,335 4,395,400
B Impact on
CE BB RS YE R initial application of 6,674 - 6,674
559 BRAUSSAE (MHEE 1)) HKFRS 9 (Note 1(b)()
W E /(R Transfer fromy/(to) Statement
TR of Comprehensive Income (19,097) 267,293 9,612 (1,228) 256,580
) < Exchange differences on translation
s
@?%Q%%%%E s of financial statements (11,195) - (11,195)
N of an overseas joint venture
= Exchange differences on translation
4R N SR
# %%ﬁg?%“ AR R of financial statements (1,246) - (1,246)
- of overseas subsidiaries
B A HEIR Inter-Fund Transfer 5,870 (33,632) 27,762
2019 4 6 H 30 A 455 Balance as at 30 June 2019 396,639 2,887,493 1,349,974 12,107 4,646,213
2017 4:7 3 1 H&f% Balance as at 1 July 2017 377,937 2,592,089 1,194,431 13,637 4,178,094
HHE /(5 Transfer from/(to) Statement
Ak E of Comprehensive Income 83,400 44,152 82,543 (302) 209,793
2 Exchange differences on translation
s B
# %igﬁ%%ﬁﬁj%i&ﬁ of financial statements 6,660 - 6,660
- of an overseas joint venture
N Exchange differences on translation
) (e N
ﬁz%@g%‘* AIRBE R of financial statements 853 - 853
: of overseas subsidiaries
FE 4 H IR Inter-Fund Transfer (51,471 15,845 35,626 -
2018 4E 6 H 30 H &5t Balance as at 30 June 2018 409,866 2,659,599 1,312,600 13,335 4,395,400

26
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Statement of Changes in Fund Balances for the year ended 30 June 2019 (Cont'd)

K&
University
— KR RS  HAikts At
L4
General and
Development
e s Reserve  Restricted Other
(AT ICst)
( Expresseci)';n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Fund Funds Funds Total
(% 10) (ftaE 11 (ftaE 12)
(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 12)
201847 H 1 HE:R Balance as at 1 July 2018 406,868 2,555,366 1,310,255 4,272,489
HUE R Impact on
C v 5 4 E U ) initial application of - 6,674 . 6,674
559 SRR (MFEE b))  HKFRS 9 (Note 1(b)())
. Transfer from/(to) Statement
2 %
HHE/(F) REGEE of Comprehensive Income (20,317) 103,583 10,448 93,714
LM H R Inter-Fund Transfer 5,870 (33,632) 27,762 -
2019 4£ 6 H 30 H 458 Balance as at 30 June 2019 392,421 2,631,991 1,348,465 4,372,877
2017 47 3 1 H&sER Balance as at 1 July 2017 376,179 2,504,977 1,190,498 4,071,654
S Transfer from Statement
H 2 2
L E IS R of Comprehensive Income 82,160 34,544 84,131 200,835
HE4H G Inter-Fund Transfer (51,471) 15,845 35,626 -
2018 £ 6 H 30 H&i% Balance as at 30 June 2018 406,868 2,555,366 1,310,255 4,272,489
Mt -
Note:
AERJIRE 2018457 17 1H BT KM (Tl BB R AR FBITER (il BT R AR 1555 o IRIFC B iy 20 - I G BARAEEAL » SAME1b) -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as at 1 July 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See Note 1(b).

GIRAS 28 & 131 HZ Mt AAMB#E L —H0 -

The Notes set out on pages 28 to 131 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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(a)

(b)

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and
the Statement of Recommended Practice ("SORP") for the
UGC-funded Institutions and the Cost Allocation Guidelines
for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities ("CAGs")
issued by the University Grants Committee ("UGC") in
Hong Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group and the University are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
University. Note 1(b) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group and the University for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Bassis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2019 comprise the University and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the "Group") and the Group's
interests in an associate and joint ventures on the basis set

out in Note 1(e).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as

otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below:

- investments in debt and equity securities (see Note 1(f))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
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and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are

discussed in Note 35.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRS and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group's financial

statements:

- HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

- HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial

items.
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( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items
that existed as at 1 July 2018 in accordance with the
transition requirements. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of total fund as at 1 July 2018.
Therefore, comparative information continues to be

reported under HKAS 39.
The following table summarises the impact of transition to

HKFRS 9 on total funds as at 1 July 2018.

R ROK

Consolidated and University

e Total Funds

REEA Remeasurement of investments 6,674

201847 A 1HM

Increase in total funds
F4 S E SN asat 1July 2018

6,674
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Further details on the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition approach are

set out below:

- Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost,
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") and at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL"). These supersede HKAS 39's four classification
categories: held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and

financial assets measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is
based on the business model under which the financial
assets are managed and their contractual cash flow

characteristics.
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The following table shows the original measurement
categories for each class of the Group's financial assets
under HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts
of those financial assets determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance with

HKFRS 9.

Rt N
Consolidated and University
120184 M B R20184F
6H30H 7A1H
e (FU ] e (F RS
HEA ) kR )
399 \ 99
LI MR TR {E EiRG XL
HKAS 39  Reclassification Remeasurement HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
) amount as at amount as at
(Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 30 June 2018 1 JUIy 2018
7N Financial assets
EEE carried at cost
FREEE A Non-Current Assets— Investments * * -
WA MR AR Financial assets
B EE measured at FVPL
FREEE—%E Non-Current Assets— Investments - * 6,674 6,674

X BRERS00TC LB IRFEB R 10 (BT ) ©

This represents HK$500, which is shown as Nil (in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) in the financial statements.
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For the explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial assets and recognises related
gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy notes in Notes 1(f), 1(j), 1(m) and

1(n).

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts
for all financial liabilities as at 1 July 2018 have not

been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the "incurred loss" model in HKAS
39 with the "expected credit loss" ("ECL") model. The

ECL model requires an ongoing measurement of credit



[ TG PR 1 BB Bk Fp it B
P A B (S RS 3B
W FHE A 39 ST O & A 1R
R R MG R - [ H
HAME 4R AT AR A K 2 1
B8 WU T Y B
B M AEE 15 ST A E N A E
A AR A R R A LA R
HRIHEMMBEE - ARAKZEMG
RAERZ GFTBRNE—S3E > &
S B 1) ©

AT T8 15 A s 18 B8 0 3 8
2018 4F 7 H 1 H HE R 1Y i {H 18 2% 1
RN E RS -

i 8 4 B

BR R ST AN - BRR Rt 8 B 5 ik
)5 9 BRI ) BLAY 6wt EUR A
BoammER

- B L Y RN S S o [
R R s JU 5 045 M D) 565 9 5%
11T 20 45 Bl R R o B
A 2018 47 A 1 H A B 3 4 op
TR o [ UL 2018 4F 251 i) & R %
CFf vl SO S 85 M 0D 56 39 SR A9 L
TR WU B L

- DUNRAE T3 2018 4E7 A 1 H
(K22 0 B 00 Ty R D R v B S S 17
WANE OSEM AN ) FENFE
FEBAE -

- A R R TE G I SE
:Eﬁ o

- AR B SR TR A S BB A )
FE D E H LA 1 B & 1
AFEIRA RS Ty - A% 2T
HEMERA S fFAEE -

risk associated with a financial asset and therefore
recognises expected credit losses ("ECLs") earlier than
the "incurred loss" accounting model in HKAS 39.
The ECL model applies to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised cost and contract assets as
defined in HKFRS 15, but not to the Group's financial
assets measured at fair value. For further details on the
Group's accounting policy regarding the accounting for

credit losses, see Note 1(j).

There is no material impact to the financial assets
provision for impairment losses recognised as at 1 July

2018 upon the adoption of the ECL model.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively,

except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative period has not
been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of
financial assets resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 are recognised in Restricted Funds as at 1 July 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for 2018
continues to be reported under HKAS 39 and thus

may not be comparable with the current period.

- The following assessment has been made on the basis
of the facts and circumstances that existed as at 1 July
2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group):

- the determination of the business model within

which a financial asset is held.

- If, at the date of initial application, the assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition would have
involved under cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has been

recognised for that financial instrument.
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(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which
covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering

of services.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method and has recognised the cumulative effect
of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance
of total fund as at 1 July 2018. Therefore, comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 18, Revenue. As allowed by HKFRS
15, the Group has applied the new requirement only to
contracts that were not completed before 1 July 2018.
There is no material impact to the Group's financial position
and financial result upon the initial application as at 1 July

2018.

Details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous

accounting policies are set out below:

- Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services
was generally recognised when the services had been

rendered to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a
performance obligation is satisfied. This is when the
customer obtains control of the promised goods or
services in the contract, which may be at a single point

in time or over time.



CEREM B DS 15 RER T
LI 3 0 DL 7R i 800 RS 1 4
T B AL 7 T T ] S -

(@) H& F5 [F] B H I 1 FE K 22 T R
Fr T ER L0 A 45 15

(b) B2 8 R A1 A Rk L (A
TERE TR ) 0% 5 REE i % A 2
B R FY E E

(C) "8 IR B ) 2 B A SR B
RAERMEKEE HR2EE
HA WIS B8 A R BLZRAT
HER -

1T 5 ] Ak K B 2 [ 1 A Jeg
JA RZ A DU AL A — TR - AR B I e
JiA B — IR S 42 AR R B ) e 0
2B EURB A < BT A e B
I T ) R 2 b E A B A 2 A
RN EEREL — -

PRAR A s T B s TR I 56 15 BB
PN LN ONGIERS 5 G DN

=
W .

Slda M EE KRR

R AR s JU S 2% DD 48 15 9%
JRE ST T 8 7 R R R A AR
IR 1 HEE ) R R o i R 5
A RE SR WS R A 4 o B 2 R G T
TR R %08 i A TR S (28 B
FE1(v)) > IR f5 Y A 2
BHVERE o WK - 5K TR AR
BT > % F & SO AR AT R I AR
(B BCE R A 4 SO R AR R 9 AR
EHZAEC B A > RIERER S
A BT R REAT BRI o BRELE P

HKFRS 15 identifies the following three situations in
which control of the promised goods or services is

regarded as being transferred over time:

(@) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provide by the Group's

performance, as the Group performs;

(b) When the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the

customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

(c)When the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group, and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the the Group's activities do
not fall into any of those situations, then the Group
recognises revenue for the sales of that goods or service
at a single point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only one
of the indicators that is considered in determining when

the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a significant

impact on when the Group recognises revenue.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the
Group has an unconditional right to consideration. If the
Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 1(v))
before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
for the promised goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a
contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays non-
refundable consideration, or is contractually required
to pay non-refundable consideration and the amount is

already due, before the Group recognises the related



— R E > BUA K EEFEHRA
MAETFHES - BRZHE4 - A
B &N EOEE LR RFEARE
LLFE RS -

A A B AR B R > BERRR AR A
B 10 A (6] B 8 40 B AE B R IR L3 o
B R SE T A B o

B O BE S > R B I R
S R HE RIS 15 B 2018 4F
7 A 1EEH TR (2 RMEE 22 K& 23) -

Rk 30
KO A A A T R
5T JCHERE 1(e) TR B by K 5 I R RE A

Wt 7 B RN B B 2 8 2L B AE
o AR AF A R 2 B JE 2 R Y
B LB EREHREH L EFA
HARAHNEE -

W I 2 5 B Ik f Mk HE

WY 2 R A K R B R o
KE BRI R R
MR A EEARA S HE M
B2 B - Sl AR D DA
2 I o TE AT RS R AT
fEE > DL RURE A (52 AR At
TR E) BB R R -

R S WD W] B B B T HE B
i AR R AR AR I - WL S
BCE DA AR « AR BRI RN
B XHMBEERE > DRREAHE
N 38 5 BT i AR R B AR > B TE AR

(©)

(@)

revenue. For a single contract with the customer, either a
net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

Previously, contract balances relating to courses and
services were presented in the Statement of Financial

Position under "Deferred Income".

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group has
made the adjustments as at 1 July 2018, as a result of

the adoption of HKFRS 15 (see Notes 22 and 23).

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial
statements of the Group made up to the end of the
reporting period and include the Group's interest in an
associate and joint ventures on the basis set out in Note 1(e)
below. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income from the date of their acquisition

or to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised

profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
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(ii)

in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment. In the
University Statement of Financial Position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see

Note 1(j)).

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the University, and
are presented in the consolidated Statement of Financial
Position within equity, separately from funds attributable
to the University. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income as an allocation of the
total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the funds

attributable to the University.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated fund balances to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

Associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
University has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
University and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets

of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost and

adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
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(f)

Group's share of the associate's or the joint venture's net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
The consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
reflects the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax
results of the associate or the joint venture for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investment in the associate or the joint venture recognised

for the year (see Note 1(j)).

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or the joint venture. For this
purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate or the joint

venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in the consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

In the Statement of Financial Position, investments in
an associate and joint ventures are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates

and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated

at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs,
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except for those investments measured at FVPL for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value
of financial instruments, see Note 29(f). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on

their classification.

- Policy applicable from 1 July 2018

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
as FVPL when the contractual cash flows of the
investment do not represent solely payments of principal
and interest. Changes in fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

If the contractual cash flows of non-equity investments
held by the Group represent solely payments of principal
and interest, the investment would be classified as
amortised cost, as the Group does not invest in such
instruments other than principally to collect those
contractual cash flows. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest

method (see Note 1(v)).

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made
if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer's perspective. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether they are
classified as FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in surplus
or deficit as other income in accordance with the policy

set out in Note 1(v).
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- Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures)
were initially stated at fair value, which was their
transaction price unless it was determined that the fair
value at initial recognition differs from the transaction
price and that fair value was evidenced by a quoted
price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses data only
from observable markets. Cost included attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated below.
These investments were subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classifications:

(i) Investments in securities held for trading were classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
were recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period, the fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gains or losses being recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as income or
expenditure. The net gain or loss recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income did not include
any interest earned or dividends on these investments
as they were recognised in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Notes 1(v)(iii) and 1(v)(iv).

(i) Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
University had the positive ability and intention to
hold to maturity were classified as held-to-maturity
debt securities. Held-to-maturity debt securities
were stated in the Statement of Financial Position at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(j)

policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018).

(i) Investments in equity securities that did not have
a quoted market price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured were recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 1(j) policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018).

Dividend income from equity securities and interest
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income from debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method were recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Notes 1(v)(iv)

and 1(v)(iii) respectively.

Investments were recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the

investments or they expire.

(9) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 1(i)) to

earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

When the Group holds an investment property under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.

Lease payments are accounted for as described in Note 1(i).

Investment properties are stated in the Statement of
Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 1(j)). Any gains or losses arising
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for

as described in Note 1(v)(v).

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight line
method to write off the cost of investment properties, less
their estimated residual values, if any, over their estimated
useful lives. Estimated useful lives for investment properties

are the same as those for buildings as shown in Note 1(h).
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(h) Other properties and equipment

Other properties and equipment are stated in the Statement
of Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see Note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of properties and
equipment includes the costs of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which

they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of properties and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the date of

retirement or disposal.

Depreciation charge is calculated using the straight line
method to write off the cost of items of properties and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives since the date of completion/
purchase. The useful life of a particular properties and
equipment is the shorter of its available-for-use period and

the period listed below:

4 / Years

o R Land and buildings The shorter of 50 years and the
unexpired term of lease.

SR ES e T Building service systems and equipment 20

BARREE Furniture and fixtures 1t0 10

) Equipment Tto5

V] i L A Library collections 5to 10

50 4FE R T AORL S BOLE

YIRERIE/E €02 IR N EiE L e N )
A FHY A DL T R A
e AR AR T o 4R
KB L 8 S 0 5 [ 7 Y TR 4
WA AR -

Where parts of an item of properties and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on
a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of the item and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(i)

Leasehold land granted by the Government for usage by the

University is recorded at a nominal amount of $1.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 1(j)), and is not depreciated. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
properties and equipment when completed and ready for

use.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see

Note 1(g)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held

under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
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held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

1)

Where the Group has the use of other assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive

Income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see Note 1(g)).

Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit Losses from financial instruments, accounts

receivables and lease receivables
- Policy applicable from 1 july 2018

For the Group's accounts receivables and lease
receivables, the Group recognises a loss allowance for
ECLs which is measured at an amount equal to "lifetime
ECLs" (which are the losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model applies). For the
Group's other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to "12-month ECLs" (which are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within

the 12 months after the reporting date) unless there has
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been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to "lifetime

ECLs".

Financial assets measured at fair value, including debt
securities, equity investments and investment funds
measured at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL

assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the

Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
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considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on

their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument's external or internal credit rating

(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status

and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument's credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to

their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether

a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
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is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future

cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security

because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off Policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in

which the recovery occurs.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an "incurred loss" model
was used to measure impairment losses on financial

assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and other
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receivables, available-for-sale investments and held-
to-maturity debt securities). Under the "incurred loss"
model, an impairment loss was recognised only when
there was objective evidence of impairment. Objective

evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technology, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of

an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss was

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in associate and joint ventures (including
those recognised using the equity method (see Note
1(e)), the impairment loss was measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with Note 1(j)(ii). The
impairment loss was reversed if there had been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount in accordance with Note 1(j)ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting
was material. Impairment losses for equity securities

carried at cost were not reversed.
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- For debt securities and other financial assets carried
at cost or amortised cost, the impairment loss was
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting was material. If in a subsequent
period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. A reversal of an impairment
loss should not result in the asset's carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had

no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

- Impairment losses were written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery was considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
were recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable was written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt were reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information were reviewed
at each reporting date to identify indications that the
following assets might be impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or might have

decreased:
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investment properties;

other properties and equipment; and

investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures in

the Statement of Financial Position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount

was estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset was the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows were discounted to their present values using a
discount rate that reflected current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset did not generate cash inflows
which were largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount was determined for the
smallest group of assets that generated cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss was recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses were
recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the asset
or assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset would not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of

disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss was reversed if there had been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount of an asset.

A reversal of an impairment loss was limited to

the asset's carrying amount that would have been
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U

determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses were
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in

the year in which the reversals were recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are consumed, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 1(v)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 1(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when the
right to the consideration has become unconditional (see

Note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 1(v)). A

contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
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has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised (see Note 1(m)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see Note

1(v)).

(m) Accounts and other receivables

(n)

()

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see Note 1(|)). Receivables
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method less allowance for credit losses (see Note 1(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits and short-term deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, having less than three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECL in accordance with policy set out in

Note 1(j)i).

Interest-bearing borrowings and borrowing
costs

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they are

incurred.
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(p) Government loans

Government loans are stated at amortised cost. The
details of the government loans received by the Group are

disclosed in Note 27.1.

(a) Accounts and other payables

(s)

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting is immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Deferred capital funds

Deferred capital funds are Government grants and donations
earmarked for capital expenditure received and receivable
by the Group. These funds, when received or become
receivable, are initially recorded as Deferred Capital Funds
and shown in the Statement of Financial Position. When the
related assets are put into use, an amount equivalent to the
depreciation charge (see Note 1(h)) of the related properties
and equipment is transferred from Deferred Capital Funds
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as income of

the same period.

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage and
any costs to the Group on monetary and non-monetary
benefits provided to employees are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered by employees

of the Group.

Contributions to the retirement schemes, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme as required under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, are recognised as expenses in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs involving

the payment of termination benefits.
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(t)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any

adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised, are

recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rate enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group and the University has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.
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v)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services or the use by others of the
Group's assets under leases in the ordinary course of the

Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when service is rendered to the
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the
amount of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected

on behalf of third parties.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

Government grants

Government grants mainly consist of block grants, matching
grants, supplementary grants, earmarked grants and capital

grants.

Government grants without a specific purpose attached are
recognised as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on an accrual basis. Any block grants which are
received in excess of the related expenditure are transferred
to General and Development Reserve Fund in accordance

with the requirements of the UGC.

Government grants for specific purposes are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position initially as deferred

income when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
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=

received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached to them. Other grants that compensate the Group
for operating expenditure incurred, are recognised as
revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the related

expenditure are incurred.

Government grants spent on capital expenditure are initially
recorded as deferred capital funds and recognised as
income over the useful lives of the related assets when they
are put into use to the extent of their related depreciation

charge for the year.

Tuitions, programme and other fees

Tuitions, programme and other fees are recognised as
income on an accrual basis over the duration of the
programmes and unearned fees received are treated as

contract liabilities (2018: deferred income).

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder's right to receive payment is

established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
equal installments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral part

of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
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(vi) Donations

Donations with general purposes are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group
becomes entitled to the donations and it is probable that
they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of
cash. Donations with specific purposes designated by the
donors are initially recognised as deferred income when
received, and then recognised as income to the extent of

the related expenditure incurred during the year.

(vii) Service income

W)

Service income is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when the relevant service is
rendered and unearned service income received are treated

as contract liabilities (2018: deferred income).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average foreign exchange
rates for the year. Statement of Financial Position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the reporting date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised as a movement in the Exchange

Reserve.
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(ii)

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised
in the Exchange Reserve which relate to that operation
outside Hong Kong is included in the calculation of the gain

or loss on disposal.

Related parties

A person, or a close member of that person's family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(@ has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(b) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or a joint venture of a member of

a Group of which the other entity is a member);

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(f) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (i);
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(g) A person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(h) The entity, or any member of a Group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.



ﬂ( Jﬁ ﬁé A
Government Subventions

B K&
Consolidated University
(AT oCRr)
( Expresse(ﬁllfn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
BB Subventions from UGC
KEREK Block Grants 1,040,242 1,028,904 1,040,242 1,028,904
i B Supplementary Grants 128,198 75,861 128,198 75,861
1,168,440 1,104,765 1,168,440 1,104,765
Fes B4 (M 2.1 Matching Grants (Note 2.1) - 536 - 536
e K Earmarked Grants
i Research 50,073 52,838 50,073 52,838
HAte Others 22,961 17,505 22,961 17,505
HHE EEF Housing Related 7,525 7,661 7,525 7,661
80,559 78,004 80,559 78,004
RIS A S AR Rates and Government Rent Refund 43,305 42,238 33,057 31,990
FCHRTE E RO - g
TolE TR Capital Grants and AA & I Block Allocation 90,596 90,020 90,596 90,020
1,382,900 1,315,563 1,372,652 1,305,315
- .wear,  Grants from Government and
PN g % . .
BORY B Btk Related Organisations
B & Matching Grant for
AL b A B ST A Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme 678 751 678 751
e B4 (Mt 2.2)  for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.2)
& ERAEIRINC Subsidy on Exchange
G (M3 2.3)  for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.3) 2,853 2497 2,853 2497
sﬁt%iﬁﬁ& Subsidy on Exchange to
—E%Jiﬂz[scm "Belt and Road" Regions 473 683 473 683
gﬂﬁ s (Ff 3 2.4) for Post-secondary Students (Note 2.4)
HoAts Others 61,292 48,356 61,292 48,356
1,448,196 1,367,850 1,437,948 1,357,602
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23 B BRI E B3
Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students

BRF R R R > BB g S S B R R R B SRR o FEMUMERE I o AR K R e BUR M
5 AV)G) o BT B Y S X e SRR AR R G B o T A WA A B 2

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary
Students, the funding received and the payments have to be separately disclosed. For the purposes of this Note,
different from the recognition policies as stated in Note 1(v)(i) of the Group's significant accounting policies, all
expenditure funded by the subsidy is written off in the year of expenditure. The related income and expenditure
are detailed as follows:

ARk
Consolidated and University
(AT 7Tt
( ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
EY Opening Balance 1,543 898
e &g Add: Subsidy Income 3,160 3,846
FLEHA Interest Income 14 5
3,174 3,851
B REENE Less: Subsidy Refund (596) (704)
I Total Income 2,578 3,147
W 3 Less: Expenditure
LIRS Subsidy to Students 2,867 2,502
S| Total Expenditure 2,867 2,502
R LR Closing Balance 1,254 1,543
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Subsidy on Exchange to “Belt and Road” Regions for Post-secondary Students

BRFEHE R > B E B B — A — % 3t R S R B R0 L S B o EUM R IR - AR R R R
B FFBORMEE 1)) - BT AR S BB 1S B & 1E S A 2 MGTEH - TR A B 2 oL

In compliance with the requirements of Education Bureau which funds Subsidy on Exchange to "Belt and Road"
Regions for Post-secondary Students, the funding received and payments have to be separately disclosed. For the
purposes of this Note, different from the recognition policies as stated in Note 1(v)(i) of the Group's significant
accounting policies, all expenditure funded by the Scheme is written off in the year of expenditure. The related
income and expenditure are detailed as follows:

e ON-
Consolidated and University
(LIVBHEToeRh)
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
EY R Opening Balance 415 2,854
e Epg Add: Subsidy Income 753 600
FE A Interest Income 1 5
754 605
W OREENSE Less: Subsidy Refund (266) (2,356)
FEL PN Total Income 488 (1,751)
R i Less: Expenditure
BEYEHS Subsidy to Students 474 688
S| Total Expenditure 474 688
i 353 Closing Balance 429 415
2% REREMbKE
Tuition, Programme and Other Fees
Y ON-
Consolidated and University
(LIVBHEToTRE)
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
E 4o gopdiE e UGC-funded Programmes
¥ Tuition Fees 383,052 377,091
R N A Programme and Other Fees 8,987 6,994
392,039 384,085
FHEE &I Non-UGC-funded Programmes
B Tuition Fees 801,087 757,601
AR R H A Programme and Other Fees 18,037 18,115
819,124 775,716
1,211,163 1,159,801




4. MERFRAWA

Interest and Net Investment Income

e K&
Consolidated University
(LT3 )
( ExpressedTiDn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
ik ) Dividends from Listed Securities 65 66 65 66
FILE A % B 52, i Interest Income and Net Exchange 13,454 11,105 13,044 10,504
g Gains
f&% SR RATH Net Realised and Unrealised 169,134 223,758 169,134 223,758
Rl Gains on Investments

HAth Others 24 30 24 37

182,677 234,959 182,267 234,365

5. HAKEERE
Donations and Benefactions
e K&
Consolidated University
(LAVH T oeat)
( Expressez;];n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
HEIEH Capital Projects 7,201 7,176 7,201 7,176
AR E) A S 2 4R Endowment 1,106 10,452 1,106 10,452
HAth Others 75,621 58,706 66,683 52,325
2L RREES Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries 6,286 11,329 6,286 11,329
90,214 87,663 81,276 81,282

i3
Note:

TEHE2019F6 30 H ILFIE - KM RA ST FHBENG B2 (7t o 195k REZ I 243,32980C (2017- 1851 - 1,568H70) K 2,51487C (2017- 184/  1,185HC) »
During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group and the University received donations and benefactions of $33.29 million (2017-18  $15.68 million) and $25. 14 million (2017-18 -

$11.85 million) respectively from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust.




Al 78 AR 5 W A

Auxiliary Services Income

A
Consolidated University

(AR T et )
( Expressed)Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
B R e A Consultancy Income 14,671 15,073 13,903 14,565
i IR License Fees 7,790 6,251 4,706 4239
AW A Rental Income 26,211 22,694 13,400 10,819
B fE 4 Residence Halls 45,835 44,295 45,835 44,295
MR WA Service Income 152,830 140,812 156,576 142,456
WEEEME Staff Quarters Rental 4,443 4,210 4,443 4,210

251,780 233,335 238,863 220,584
H A A
Other Income

ey RE
Consolidated University
(AR ToesT )
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
EERILA Conference Income 2,227 2,607 2,227 2,607
ELA TR E I 2 Fees on Student Activities 7,161 6,028 7,161 6,028
e Miscellaneous 34,420 32,565 17,793 15,985
i Research 6,777 10,719 6,777 10,719
50,585 51,919 33,958 35,339

Wit -
Note:

TEREE201996 30 H IFF 1% » KA RA 511§ United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia H WA 75 145 7C (2017-18F /% : 1347T) -

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group and the University received other income of $0.14 million (2017-18 - $0.13 million) from United Board for Christian Higher

Edlucation in Asia.
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Expenditure

Ba
Consolidated
Ik B i B rgg gt
(LN ) Staff Costs Operating o
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
HE  BE A Teaching, Learning and Research
& KR Teaching and Research 1,453,011 353,091 54,211 1,860,313
] 5 Library 45,707 16,035 25,641 87,383
T B Central Computing Facilities 72,646 21,257 5,894 99,797
Fofth 2 2 R 5 Other Academic Services 82,404 17,027 324 99,755
1,653,768 407,410 86,070 2,147,248
BB (FiEE 8.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
EI R — Management and General 244,454 43,826 11,661 299,941
e A BB Premises and Related Expenses 81,546 289,760 114,893 486,199
B R— BB IR Students and General Education Services 66,559 112,509 1,969 181,037
oA 15 ) Other Activities 13,642 6,022 6,923 26,587
406,201 452,117 135,446 993,764
2019 4 PEAESC Total Expenditure 2019 2,059,969 859,527 221,516 3,141,012
#E  BE KA Teaching, Learning and Research
HE LR Teaching and Research 1,384,612 310,667 47,216 1,742,495
] A Library 45,176 13,546 24,939 83,6061
Hh ol S R Central Computing Facilities 68,503 24,547 5,672 98,722
A ELER B Other Academic Services 79,077 10,643 333 90,053
1,577,368 359,403 78,160 2,014,931
B (M 8.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
B R Management and General 229,326 44,090 7,194 280,610
B B BB Premises and Related Expenses 70,929 254,386 110,906 436,221
BVE R s Students and General Education Services 62,762 109,277 1,254 173,293
Tt 35 ) Other Activities 13,232 7,802 3,884 24918
376,249 415,555 123,238 915,042
2018 4R Total Expenditure 2018 1,953,617 774,958 201,398 2,929,973




8.

S (4)

Expenditure (Cont'd)

K&
University
B B FrE s BE e Hst
s Staff Costs Operating
(AT 7Tt )
(ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) and Benefits Expenses Depreciation Total
B B KA Teaching, Learning and Research
HE R RH Teaching and Research 1,449,313 342,159 51,733 1,843,205
[ S Library 45,707 16,035 25,641 87,383
Hh S B S Central Computing Facilities 72,646 21,206 5,895 99,747
oAt 20 R 5 Other Academic Services 81,643 19,298 314 101,255
1,649,309 398,698 83,583 2,131,590
BT (s 8.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
HHR M Management and General 244,454 40,344 11,661 296,459
e oA BB 3 Premises and Related Expenses 81,546 272,152 114,888 468,586
B R— I E IR Students and General Education Services 66,559 112,509 1,969 181,037
HoAth 35 ) Other Activities 8,831 4,780 478 14,089
401,390 429,785 128,996 960,171
2019 4R RIS Total Expenditure 2019 2,050,699 828,483 212,579 3,091,761
B2 B KA Teaching, Learning and Research
HE LR Teaching and Research 1,379,995 309,033 43,929 1,732,957
[ i Library 45,176 13,546 24,939 83,661
Hh B S Central Computing Facilities 68,503 24,494 5,672 98,669
FLAth B R Other Academic Services 78,294 13,038 323 91,655
1,571,968 360,111 74,863 2,006,942
B 5 (5 8.1) Institutional Support (Note 8.1)
IR — Management and General 229,326 41,337 7,194 277,857
e KA BB Premises and Related Expenses 70,929 232,406 110,901 414,236
B R — R IR Students and General Education Services 62,762 109,277 1,254 173,293
HoA 1 ) Other Activities 8,518 6,710 582 15,810
371,535 389,730 119,931 881,196
2018 4F AR Total Expenditure 2018 1,943,503 749,841 194,794 2,888,138
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8.1 HEBXBZZEELW M

Analysis of Operating Expenses - Institutional Support

oty K&
Consolidated University
iéfjildj?ih)ousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
R Management and General
i/ 5 Advertisement/Promotion 7,048 5,783 4,272 3,403
BT 5 Auditor's Remuneration 797 792 698 702
E) Equipment 4,251 4,510 4,251 4,510
HAER X General Expenses 18,020 20,292 18,209 20,996
— MR General Insurance 2,421 1,018 2,352 943
i [ 2 Professional Fees 2,034 2,626 1,838 2,275
LB 57 Recruitment Expenses 4,674 5,438 4,648 5,415
kB 590 Staff Development 2,371 2,146 2,371 2,146
J5 1y Transportation 2,210 1,485 1,705 947
43,826 44,090 40,344 41,337
W4 KA B Premises and Related Expenses
KA 2 #  Campus Repair and Maintenance 50,858 43,629 50,858 43,629
THER AR % Cleaning and Security Services 77,085 70,680 73,321 67,003
Fn Equipment 1,150 489 767 360
WAERT General Expenses 6,278 7,183 6,495 6,712
2 F b Government Rent and Rates 43,448 42,456 33,121 32,117
INETRE Minor Works 26,781 7,897 27,537 5,322
WA B Office Rental 10,986 11,982 8,855 8,906
VI L Property Insurance 1,637 2,494 1,396 2,302
L RrE Safety Expenses 903 788 903 788
BT a4 M R#  Staff Quarters Repair and Maintenance 3,768 2,297 3,768 2,297
K &' R Utilities 66,866 64,491 65,131 62,970
289,760 254,386 272,152 232,406
Bk KRB FE M Student and General Education Services
WA Congregation Expenses 1,453 1,512 1,453 1,512
R Equipment 556 956 556 956
e Examination Fee 538 586 538 586
WAEH General Expenses 3,797 3,880 3,797 3,880
A A L Joint Sports Centre 1,434 1,297 1,434 1,297
B R TR (e Medical and Dental Care 3,004 2,929 3,004 2,929
HYIEH) Music Activities 365 712 365 712
BAEEEHY Residence Halls Expenses 7,838 7,548 7,838 7,548
B4 Scholarships 71,301 69,219 71,301 69,219
BEEH) Student Activities 10,444 9,646 10,444 9,646
B hE Student Exchange Programme 11,779 10,992 11,779 10,992
112,509 109,277 112,509 109,277
FoAt 3% B Other Activities 6,022 7,802 4,780 6,710
452,117 415,555 429,785 389,730




8.2 ¥k H &K
Higher Paid Staff Remuneration

BE 2019 6 H 30 HILFERKERBEIUESH @M 180 &St HFENT ¢

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the number of higher paid staff with total remuneration* exceeding $1.8 million is

as follows:
2019 2018
A N
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
$1,800,001 - 1,950,000 31 29
$1,950,001 - 2,100,000 28 26
$2,100,001 - 2,250,000 18 13
$2,250,001 - 2,400,000 15 "
$2,400,001 - 2,550,000 6 9
$2,550,001 - 2,700,000 4 7
$2,700,001 - 2,850,000 6 2
$2,850,001 - 3,000,000 5 1
$3,000,001 - 3,150,000 3 -
$3,150,001 - 3,300,000 - 1
$3,300,001 - 3,450,000 3 2
$3,450,001 - 3,600,000 - 1
$3,600,001 - 3,750,000 ** 1 -
$7,350,001 - 7,500,000 - 1
$7,500,001 - 7,650,000 1 -
121 103

* HECIH R - MW E B RS TGS - BTG SRR ARSI (TR [ ) (ABIEB - B R BT TR - WA B IR G # A F7 B FIL 2
BIYFEN IEIE AT LA o 2 MEAAE MR RT I > LU L AR AE S 19 3 (AR -
Remuneration includes salary, contribution to gratuity/retirement plans, cash allowances, housing benefits, individual income tax of People's Republic of China ("PRC"),
passage allowances and education allowances. For staff whose quarters were provided as part of their remuneration package, the ratable values assessed by the Rating and
Valuation Department were used as the values of their housing benefits in determining their total remuneration in the year.

A EEE201996 30 H R201856 30 H ILFIE - B EHAETES7 58 £ 7358702 A ZMA B E -
During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, there was nil staff with total remuneration between $3.75 million and $7.35 million.
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Income and Expenditure by Segment

Disclosures regarding segment reporting are included as
a requirement of the SORP and are not designed to fully
comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8 "Operating

segments".

In accordance with the SORP, the University discloses
an analysis of income and expenditure recognised by its
reported segments that are defined by source of funding,
namely UGC-funded Activities and Non-UGC-funded

Activities.

UGC-funded Activities include programmes, research
projects and activities supported by UGC grants. Non-
UGC-funded Activities represent other activities funded
by sources other than UGC grants, including self-financed
funding, donations and grants from government agencies
other than UGC. For the purpose of cost allocation, certain
activities, which by nature are non-UGC funded activities,
could be deemed to be UGC-funded activities and hence
the relevant costs incurred are to be charged to the UGC

vote.

Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and non-UGC

funded activities

(@) The University determines the basis of allocation of costs
between UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities
with reference to the UGC Notes on Procedures and the

CAGs which is effective from 1 July 2018.

(b) The classification of UGC-funded and non-UGC-
funded activities is based on the funding sources of
the activities. The direct costs of the UGC-funded and
non-UGC-funded activities are both charged fully and

directly to the respective activities.

(c) The CAGs define principles and approaches of cost
allocation, including the definition of cost pools and cost
drivers for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities

on a full cost recovery basis.



(d) R 4% 2 ok E B E . R 2018-19
IR T B R R
2017-18 4F F£ A B4R H LA 43 k4
FlZ R EM T ERE G R -

(d) The comparative figures of 2017-18 with the adoption
of the CAGs are exempted by the UGC in accordance
with SORP in the first reporting period of adoption of
such segment reporting in 2018-19.
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10. General and Development Reserve Fund

The General and Development Reserve Fund ("GDRF")
represents the balance of recurrent grants from the UGC
which is allowed to be carried forward from one funding
period to another. The balance of the GDRF at the end of
a funding period (usually a triennium) that can be carried
over to the next funding period should not exceed 20% of
the University's approved Recurrent Grants, other than the
Earmarked Grants for Specific Purposes, for that funding
period. Such balance may only be used for supporting UGC-
approved activities of the University. The fund balance with

movements is listed in Note 10.1.

Movements of General and Development Reserve Fund

A

Consolidated |
(AT oTRT)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )
2018 %7 A 1 H&:BR Balance as at 1 July 2018 409,866
Lt E R G Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (19,097)
LB AN H R (KRR ) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 5,870
2019 4£ 6 A 30 H 4585 Balance as at 30 June 2019 396,639
2017 47 B 1 H&:fR Balance as at 1 July 2017 377937
R B AT IS R Transfer from Statement of Comprehensive Income 83,400
BB M R (PR ) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) (51,471)
2018 4£ 6 [ 30 H 4% Balance as at 30 June 2018 409,866

KE
University ‘

(AT oTsT)
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )
2018 %7 A 1 H&E % Balance as at 1 July 2018 406,868
R 2 A T L £ R Transfer to Statement of Comprehensive Income (20,317)
B TR () Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) 5,870
2019 4E 6 A 30 H 4565 Balance as at 30 June 2019 392,421
2017 457 B 1 H&:fR Balance as at 1 July 2017 376,179
W B AT IS R Transfer from Statement of Comprehensive Income 82,160
B4 R MR ( BfFRE ) Inter-Fund Transfer (Note) (51,471)
2018 4£ 6 H 30 H 45k Balance as at 30 June 2018 406,868

Wit -
Note:

HR TR ELHT H S8 FLE A S PIFE DRI - HAE St — R R B R ~ IR ) HH MR AT

Inter-Fund Transfer includes value of services provided by one cost centre to another, which was funded by General and Development Reserve Fund, various Restricted and/

or Other Funds.
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11.

Restricted Funds

Restricted Funds are designated for specific purposes and
classified separately according to their natures and uses as
described in Note 11.1. The relevant fund balances with

movements are listed in Note 11.2.

11.1 Restricted Funds are classified under the

following items:

Endowment Fund is mainly donations on which the University
would, according to the wishes of the donors or for strategic
reasons, keep the principal intact and only use income
generated from the fund to support University activities of

designated purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be used
on the related self-financed activities generating such surplus.
They are therefore all designated for specific purposes and

are rarely used to finance other activities of the Group.

Operation Reserves are provisions for planned expenditure
of certain self-financed activities with a specific nature e.g.

building repair and maintenance reserve for the hostel.

Scholarships, Prizes & Bursaries and Loan Funds are used to
award students according to the established principles of the

University.

Unspent Balance for Research represents the total remaining
balances of funds designated for different research projects

supported by non-government subventions.

University Capital Works Fund represents the unspent balance
of all capital projects funded by non-government fund plus an
amount equivalent to the net book values of those buildings

financed by such funding.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used for certain designated purposes.

Exchange Reserve is the exchange difference arising from
the translation of the results of operations and assets and
liabilities of entities outside Hong Kong into Hong Kong

dollars.



‘spuny 2410 kﬁ\\utm PoIOLISaY snoLieA \\uQZn\ ONIDSIY NE%EQQ\.W\_WQ pue jeisuary \AQ papuny sem yoym C.E.\NOQW 0] 2.4Ju32 )S0I aUOo \AQ h.w\,vx\—aki $3JINIS JO INfeA sepndul dgjsuel] pun{-iaiuf

fVEEFEMHI ) UGG F TR 2 0 T G < S G bl S ) Lol S [ B 5 7 B T 5

BJON
]
665%659'C L9S'YL 06889 $7£%699 0£5'8S1L 0£6'961 AR 06£168 916961 810 dun( Qg je se dueeg W H 0€ | 9 3y 810T
Sr8'sl = (9ct'Ty) OLzyeL) L0S'LLL 81T v/8'L 086/t (965'9) (910N) Jajsued . pung-ioy| (TR Sl B BV 5
SoLIeIPISCNS 22
fofele] €69 - - - - - - - SE3SIDAO JO SjuaLLR)e)S [eIduRUlf 2
“_o corm_mcmb uo mwucwhwt_t wwcwr_uxm_ E@ME ,_%qw_%mﬁ
2IMuaA ol WU
099’9 099’9 - - - - - - - SB3SI9A0 U JO SJUSLUIJE)S [elduRUL a2 2]
JO UOIJe|SUBL} UO SSOUSRHIP 93ueydX] B S |0k
, i , , , , , , , QWOdU| dAISURYRIdWOD) XUMhEE
Sy (€z8'9l) SL9'ty (1S¥'9p) (¥6¥91) (852¢) 79515 L6v'TE O JUBLIBEIS (03) / LU0} JoySUel] (E) /H B
680'76ST 7502 671°0€L G605/ v/¥'€6 zel'lel 963'8S1 87888/ 1201 L £107 An[ | 1e se souefeg W | | L4y 10T
£61'/88'T 91T LLL'T8 9713899 £€6'8/L 0v8'86lL <8I/l S66'7801 11Z°00S 6L 0T dunf Qg je se dueeg WEH 0E H 9456107
(T€9'c8) 0 0ry'9T (£9%'6€) 041l £TT'8T 67601 (8/1'1y) (€£'€1) (SI0N) Jjsued | pun4-sou| (LR Sl B S5
m_\w:m_ﬁ_mﬂzm %%.ﬁ@
orz'L) or'l) = = - - - - - SB3SIDAO JO SJUSLISIEIS [eIDURUL 2L
“_o cO:w_m:mb uo mwu:w‘_m.t__u mw:mf_uxm_ W@ME ,_%%mﬁ
2.nuaA ol WU
(S6L°LL) (S61°L1) - - - - - - - SB3SI9AO0 U JO SJUSLUIJe)S [elDuURUL a2 300
JO UOIJE|SUBL} UO SSDUSRHIP 93ueydX] B E S sk
, i , , , , , , , QWOdU| dAISURYRIdWOD) XUMhET
€67'/97 (€ss'zL) 697'8¢ €ez'6l (£8¢'90) 940 601 €T 890'/1 O JUSWRIES (0)) / L0} JaJSURI (E) /H ¥
()L NON) 6 SUDIH (DL TER ) e A« LHYE 6 5
¥/9'9 = = > = = ° ¥/9'9 = jo uonedi(dde [eniul (e s WS e )
uo Joeduw HagMmAa
665'659'C /9571 06389 ¥2€'699 0£5gS1L 0£6'961 710691 06£’168 916'96% 8107 An[ | e se aouejeg W | | L4y 8L0C
( srejop Buoy| 8uoH Jo spuesnoyy ur passaidxy )
(20 )
[elop ARSIy sPYO puny YoJeasay spund ueo SOAI9SY SaNIAIDY puny{
aSueypx3 pue SO 1o} pue sauesing  uonerdO padueul-RS  JuswMmOopu]
suoneuo( [ende) oueeq X} S97Z1Lid
ANSIDAIUN wadsun ‘sdiystejoydg
25 Y FNg WHWEE  TEHTH B TEERYW  YHRE EYEHE LB
FEFEY  [EEXE Tl 5 R ENZ
LEH
pareprjosuo)
o spun4 pajouisay JO SJUSWBAON
TEMETI

79



8o

SPUN JYIO) 10/PUE PAIDLISDY SNOLIEA “PUN dAIDSSY JUDUIAOIIAS(] PUE [IDUSD) AG PIPUNJ SEM YDIYM “ISYIOUE 0] 1UBD JSOD dUO AG PIPIAOI SIIINIIS JO DINYEA SIPAIUI JSJSURL| PUN-ID)U]

LT RHNE ) WL - S F YRR 0 W — T < S G030 BEG 58 Y1 Lo bl 5 [ B 2 23 B g i T B 5

99£°666‘T 790°8S $7£'699 950'8S1L 0£6'961 710'e9L 920°c18 916’961
Srg'sl 9ct'Th) Q1z'vel) L0SL1L L1 v/8'/ 086y (9659)
rrSre (£96'€T) Sty (0St'9p) (r6v'91) (652'¢) 86005 L6¥'TE
£16'70S°T S9t'vel S16'0S2 66676 zeL'16l £68'8SL 8671/ 12014y
166°1€9'C 9’02 971899 8SH'g/L 0v8g6L S8h1LL ST9'vh8 112°00S
(Te9'ce) 0rt'9C (£9t'6€) 011 £TT'8T 676°01 (8/L'LY) (€2£'€1)
£85°c01 (9sT'v1) 697'8¢ zet’el (£6€'90) 940 €01'eL 8901
¥/9'9 = = = = = ¥/9'9 =
99¢'665'T 790'8S ¥7£'699 950'gS1 0£6'961 710'€91 920'¢18 916'961
_So._. m‘_wsuo bc:n_ r_uhmommw_ mbczu_ ueo] SOAIDSAY SNIAIY tcsn_
Ucw mv_‘_o>> ‘_ouﬁ _o:m mw:mmt_sm COEEQQO Uwu:m:_uf__wm EwEBov:m_
suoireuo(] [ende) aouejeg X S9ZlIld
ANSIDAIUN wadsun ‘sdiystejoydg
i WHNEE TEFEHTH  BEHY TEEHY  WEEE ENEHE THHEZ
#EFwY  [FEEN Tli-3f L2 41N
At
KisioAtun)
=Y

810 dunf (g Je se duejeg

(9I0N) Jajsuel] pund-Jay|
AIODU| dAISURYRIdWO)

JO JusWie)S (01) / WO} Jajsuel |

£L0T AIn( | e se aduefeq

610 dunf (g Je se duejeg
(SI0N) Jajsuel| pund-Jo|
SWOdU| dAISURYRIdWOD)

JO JUSWIAJES (03) / WOy Jajsuel |

(@)L =10N) 6 S¥4HH
Jo uonedidde [eniul
uo 1edw|

810z Apnf | 1 se aduejeg

DJON
e

B H 0E H 94y 810C

CEM) M BN
F T

(F),/E i

W LY LA £10T

HWHH 0S [ 9y 6L0T
(TER) bt B VT
B0 ke
(&) /E itk
(XL FEH ) 74 LY 6 &
(e A )
EIEIEE
WH | L4 8l0C

Ho

( srejop Buoy| 8uoH Jo spuesnoyy ur passaidxy )

(4290 L3 H)

(pJUOD) spun4 PooLISY JO SJUBWDAOIN

() GRTFEME T



12.

3l 3 &

Hofth 2 2 45 R RS UM S >
TR B — i Bl BTG 2 A7 46 72 A
FAEGHA LMEE 12,1 HEMEER K
BEEIIRMIRE 12.2 ¢

RS UHUT & :

e 5570 B < R O 6 4% 2 01 I A
SRk 2 KB o RIREUE & A K BUAT
Wbl > BREUATEBOE G il 2 K EHE B
S H T Sz 48 6 SRR

AR B RIS 4 2 A A N WA R E
g o KB I I 4 B R A TR
—RELEE AT AL

0 ) 1) S R O T TR — R A A
RPN S VO 0T

A B A R 5 546 Bl R A LA Rl
BAEE G ZHEE -

12.

Other Funds

Other Funds are funds other than Restricted Funds. They are
used to support the University's general activities without
designated purposes and are generally grouped into the
items as described in Note 12.1. The relevant fund balances

with movements are listed in Note 12.2.

12.1 Other Funds are classified under the following

@

items:

Unspent Balance of Matching Grants represents the total
remaining balances of funds from various rounds of the
Matching Grant Schemes. According to the prevailing rules
and regulations promulgated by the UGC, the balance can
be carried forward without time limit for supporting UGC-

approved activities of the University.

Endowment Fund is mainly donations without designated
purposes on which the University would keep the principal
intact and only use the income generated from the fund to

support University's activities in general purposes.

Self-financed Activities have accumulated surplus to be
used on self-financing activities. They are not designated for
specific purposes and are used to finance the Group's and

the University's activities in general.

Donations and Others are funds other than those stated

above and are to be used without designated purposes.
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14. R BAE 2K E
Investment in Subsidiaries

KE
University
(LI Toest )
(Expressed ?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
BB > A (B SE 17.1)
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note 17.1) 100 100

PR B R A K A R RFERE o RN 28 i 2 B2 Sy B m Mk o LS8 J B ST 1(dl) i 2 Y 2 2 i
AR AR TER R E R B RN -

The following list contains the particulars of the University's subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated. All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(d) and have been consolidated

into the Group's financial statements.

FrAfER L L3
Proportion of Ownership Interest
NGRS FAT BT KBTS KE WEAF FEEHS
BT EPRREL el A
Name of Company Particulars of University's Held Held Principal
Issued and  Effective by the by Activity
Paid-up Capital Interest University Subsidiary
(@) wEBOL R s
Place of incorporation and operation : Hong Kong
HKBU Holdings Limited* 2 ) ) PERB AT
2 shares 100% 100% Holding Company
BB R R A TR A ) 100,000 k& 1009 1009 FHF B P AR5
HKBU Science Consultancy 100,000 shares 00% 00% Scientific Research and
Company Limited* Consultancy Services
R AR AERT I A R A ) 2% iR dERT T R R
Institute for the Advancement of 2 shares 100% 100%  Chinese Medicine Research
Chinese Medicine (IACM) Limited* and Development
AR M o S
Smartlife Limited* 2 shares 00% 00% Property Holding
BUCM Limited* GELSE . . PRAERT
Limited by 100% 100%  Chinese Medicine Research
guarantee
A i A T O A PR A AR . ) B R e A R A
Hong Kong Creative Arts Centre Limited by 100% 100% Promotion and Development
Limited* guarantee of Creative Arts
Y PN TN 21t ) ) FAF
(Bi5E) 2 shares 50% 50% Holding Company
Hong Kong Baptist University
Investment Limited* (Note)
BB 82 A PR A * 1k 1009 1000 TR R L L E S
HKBU R&D Licensing Limited* 1 share 00% 00% Intellectual Properties

o R G TR TR
Not audited by KPMG.

Commercialisation and Trading

88



14. AWIE AR 2% & (4)

Investment in Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

RG22 LR
Proportion of Ownership Interest
IR BATRET KA AL RE AR TEE
AT EPRRER A E¥E)
Name of Company Particulars of University's Held Held Principal
Issued and  Effective by the by Activity

Paid-up Capital Interest  University Subsidiary

(b) A b B s+ v

Place of incorporation and operation : PRC

TR REGYIE b N ) , B R m

Institute for Research and N/A 100% 100% ) Training and Research
Continuing Education*

EREHRE (Y FRRAR* 600 #JT ) , R RS

BU Consultancy (Shenzhen) Limited* $6 million 100% ) 100% Consultancy Service

T RAEERBHCA RA R (M) 2,500 &7 ) 1000 TR I R I

Changshu HKBU Technology $25 million 50% ) 00% Research and Consultancy
Company Limited*(Note) Service

* o R GRS
Not audited by KPMG.

Note:

FHREBREH LA ([FL A ) Z50%BIEHF=T1H o KT - RIEZMRIRF 5% ( [ ) > KBRZ L A EF GHEHKEZLFL - 00— FEI T B
R LA o H =77 BT # 4 AN (A 7 FI 2 (It M 2 T R HEai BRAY) - IRTRARREZ 2 Al 9 (E TR AR 2 A ORI FEAT -

50% of the equity interest of Hong Kong Baptist University Investment Limited (the "Company") was held by third party. According to the Subscription &
Shareholders' Agreement (the "Agreement"), the University has a majority of the Company's board of directors and is solely empowered to manage and operate
the Company. The third party shall neither be entitled to any profit or assets (save and except for interest in certain assets as defined in the Agreement) nor be
liable for any loss or liabilities of the Company.



15. & 26 2 i

Interest in an Associate

B K%
Consolidated University
LM T A )
:éxpressedj?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
JREAL & W HE Share of Net Assets 848 1,313 - .
W5E 1e) WA E 2 ME—E A Rl E R
The following are particulars of the only associate as defined under Note 1(e):
R %
Proportion of Ownership Interest
i NS (G S GRS BT MBS KRR PTG R TR
B B, [F& =g H g A
Name of Associate Form of Place of Particulars of Group's Held Principal
Business Incorporation Issued and Effective by the Activity
Structure  and Operation  Paid Up Capital Interest University
HA LR DL AT T ARAER BRI
R A BRA ]
Hong Kong Organic Corporation Hong Kong Limited by 33.3% 33.3% Organic
Resource Centre Guarantee Certification
Certification Limited* Service

* o IR
Not audited by KPMG.

W O F B BRI

Summary financial information of the Associate:

|

il

G BfE BHREER Wi (ER)/BR 2HER)/ A

A
Assets  Liabilities Equity ~ Revenue (Deficit)/Surplus Total
LN TR ) Comprehensive
JUR
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) (Loss)/lncome
2019
100% 100% 4,108 (1,566) 2,542 12,948 (1,396) (1,396)
REFBHIE  Group's
HM R Effective Interest 1,369 (521) 848 4,316 (465) (465)
2018
100% 100% 4,347 (409) 3,938 11,921 965 965
REFBHL  Group's
BEBHELD Effective Interest 1449 (136) 1,313 3,974 322 322

Wt 2w TR e A R R I 2 A A B R AR - S FE MR R ER B A ]

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the Group's consolidated financial statements and

considered to be not individually material.



16. 7 & 2 HHE 2 1 &

Interests in Joint Ventures

con;ﬁiamd Unifiny
ﬁﬁfijﬁftﬁmnds of Hong Kong dollars) 2019 2018 2019 2018
RS AE Unlisted Shares, at cost - - 146,042 146,042
JEAG 2 B TR Share of Net Assets 387,105 234,918 - -

WEEE 16e) A E 2 B E BRI T

The following are particulars of the joint ventures as defined under Note 1(e):

BEMZ AR

& &

Proportion of Share of

Voting Right Interest
3 R AL K AT BB KREEB KREER TEER

AEE NS T B JRAE A B KB Bk B
Name of Joint Ventures Place of Particulars of The Group The Group Principal
Incorporation Issued and and the and the Activity

and Operation  Paid Up Capital University University
B R O A R A ) * i A R TR i BT 5
Baptist Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited by 50% 50% Chinese
Research Centre Limited* Guarantee Medicine
Research
AR R — i R e N PRl A
Tt A R R S ( BfFRE ) 154 HE
Beijing Normal University —Hong Kong PRC RMB 50% 100% Provision
Baptist University United 150 million of Higher
International College* (Note) Education

o RIS TR TR
Not audited by KPMG.

Mt -
Note:

JRBREASE - B O ARG ARG (R (A ERRERE) ) BALRHEAAE (RE (AR ) ) RIEBBZEASE (R [32E AR ) BRI - R & B2 b
B - KE G A BB A LA R G A IR RO (CHPTALL o 1752 B A BRI ATA G RER I IREF A B I & S b g 1 B 1 F
TABE BT R - AR A AR B B A A R 1 (LU @t XA o i 2 BB ER e 1y AR TF e HE A - ATE PIIRE ML - EMEEA S 15T N R - R ZHE T

BUERESHE -

Beijing Normal University - Hong Kong Baptist University United International College ("UIC") was co-founded by the Beijing Normal University ("BNU") and Hong Kong
Baptist University ("HKBU"). According to the Collaborative Agreement on the establishment of UIC, its governing board (which is the governing body of UIC) would have
equal number of representatives from BNU and HKBU. As neither HKBU nor BNU has the ability to control the governing board of UIC, the University has therefore accounted
for its investment in UIC as a joint venture using the equity accounting method for UIC's results of operation and net assets. UIC is incorporated in the PRC and is a Private Non-

Corporate Entity with a registered capital of RMB 150 million. Its principal activity is provision of higher education.




16. REaBEM LR (5)

Interests in Joint Ventures (Cont'd)

AR TN B B R B — R R A A

Summary Financial Information of Joint Ventures— Group's Effective Interest:

(LAY T oeRt)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
JEiE &= Non-Current Assets 1,660,384 1,623,725
B E Current Assets 176,803 243,693
B AR Current Liabilities (548,824) (876,265)
E R UN=K s Non-Current Liabilities (901,258) (756,235)
G THE Net Assets 387,105 234,918
A Income 826,915 587,815
b Expenditure (663,533) (583,888)
AR BB B Surplus for the Year 163,382 3,927
HoAh 2l as Other Comprehensive Income (11,195) 6,660
2T s AR Total Comprehensive Income 152,187 10,587

AE Y AR T OB T 2 A B HOGR AR A T B R R

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in the Group's consolidated financial statements and
considered to be not individually material.



17.

17.

iy

17.2

&

Investments
Fay KE
Consolidated University
(LA TRt )
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
IR G Non-Current Investments
B AT R Financial assets
12 359:3 measured at amortised cost
FrE M A 2 5 Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 2,000 - -
M ) 2 Investment in Subsidiaries ) ] 100 100
(FH5E 14) (Note 14)
A = . ek
BTHBARZER Loans to Subsidiaries ) ] 3,000 2,000
2,000 2,000 3,100 2,100
A AT AN Financial assets measured at
lig73=9:3 FVPL
I EMASLE (HHEE () Unlisted equity investments (Note (i) 7,988 - 7,988 -
FERIBEE AT Total Non-Current Investments 9,988 2,000 11,088 2,100
REHE Current Investments
A AR AN Financial assets
g 35973 measured at FVPL
TEEBS Trading Securities
&% Debt Securities 1,636,305 1,452,366 1,636,305 1,452,366
BB (BAEE (i) Equity Securities (Note (ii)) 1,407,839 1,464,081 1,407,839 1,464,081
it 4 TR Derivative Financial
B Instruments Assets 2,306 7,221 2,306 7,221
BEEL Investment Funds 2,078,831 1,050,266 2,078,831 1,050,266
SRR EERE Total Financial Current Assets in
g Investments 5,125,281 3,973,934 5,125,281 3,973,934
fiEam TR Derivative Financial
Al Instruments Liabilities (1,349) (1,027) (1,349) (1027)
RERE A Total Current Investments 5,123,932 3,972,907 5,123,932 3,972,907
Eiasg Ll Total Investments 5,133,920 3,974,907 5,135,020 3,975,007
Mt -
Note:

() KBFEH—REES5007C (20184 - —/RETES007T) & KLH G T TOHRA AR - HFHZAAREZ12.5%

%o

o AT BRI T BN il R G E T b

KEBINFGRE AIEIE ([#E0E] ) 12.5% (20187 © 12.5%) Wi (R A LEEMA) o SERERI 1990997 18 H it AL 25— [ (RATIR A 7l - HEH I (C AL IE AR

EHRIE R GRS -

WIRCHE B > WRFEAAEL




The University holds 1 share of $500 (2018: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% of the share capital of Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited, a company providing
computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in Hong Kong.

The University has a 12.5% (2018: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, in Joint University Programmes Admissions System ("JUPAS") which was incorporated on
18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to administer and operate the joint admissions system for and on behalf of each
member of the JUPAS.

Under the transition method chosen, comparative information is not restated.

(i) RS 01— RIS A L 172 ] — B ) R AR A (" BB (R ) 9230 7CHRAE - 2% A AIE IR 201543 30 H I FE S o WRIR M 555 T ("2t 94
G 2019 4 7 H 2 HIAHE - BIEZG P LT (EE) %58 G LITE S G 20185F4 /7 (EHRIRE - 1580 E 7R 1 B (REGHIIFEE o B R —_—
WHE 201995 H B IEHEFHHEH TR LFF - BR20195F6H30H » ABE MG LR EEHEE T (20187 : 2308 7T) -

Includled in the equity securities investments was $2.3 million equity interest in a long-suspended stock, China Animal Healthcare Limited ("CAH") which was suspended
from trading on 30 March 2015. According to the announcement of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKEX") on 2 July 2019, the Listing (Review) Committee
under the HKEX upheld its Listing Committee’s decision made in April 2018 to commence the delisting procedure of CAH after a forensic investigation. CAH had applied for
a review of the delisting decision in May 2019. The University has considered the fair value of this investment to be $Nil as at 30 June 2019 (2018: $2.3 million).

* HA2008TCH FEFALF T 8% 15~ JEHAT RIGTR AT » T3 100B TCLEH I3 HERLE ~ JEALIP RAZER BEHE
One of the loan amounting to $2.0 million bears interest rate at 8% per annum, compounded annually, is unsecured and is repayable on demand. Another loan amounting
to $1.0 million is interest free, unsecured and is repayable on demand.

173 % &% 2 0 b &
Interest in Investment Funds

REEMIENRTHREE » REHRGEAARZF EHRERERSM G4 HER 2 EF -

- RS G R P AT BRI PR R ol Rl R Y AR

- R GRNE B HA B R EAE T IRE] &

- R R I R B DRI SR e TREE -

The Group has concluded that the unlisted open-ended investment funds in which it invest, were not consolidated,

meet the definition of structured entities because:

- The voting rights in the funds are not dominant rights in deciding who controls them because the rights related
to administrative tasks only;

- each fund's activities are restricted by its prospectus; and

- the funds have narrow and well-defined objectives to provide investment opportunities to investors.

R R B R B R A A A MRAE R RS A A R 2 AR o
The table below describes the types of structured entities that the Group and the University do not consolidate but
in which it holds an interest.

A E R TR % RE A R R R AR
Type of Structure Entity ~ Nature and Purpose Interest Held by the Group
and the University
REHE DIVRRES = 7 BOE 8 T X 150 AL A i P& AL T EA T B
Investment funds To manage assets on behalf of third party investors and Investments in units issued
generate fees for the investment managers. by the funds.

BE Ty ) BEE & AT B BT SR
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to
investors.




173 K&ELMHER (5)
Interest in Investment Funds (Cont'd)

REWARER THEEFANRERESNMELD - BLREESNE MR ARERBEERA - BERELESmEEE
BRI

The University holds interest in investment funds investing in the following asset classes. The purpose of these
investment funds is to generate investment income for the University. These investment funds are managed by
professional fund managers.

TR KB I KRB EE SR NS o BORWEEREAN ARA 2 SMEENIREE
The table below sets out interest held by the Group and the University in investment funds. The maximum
exposure to loss is the carrying amount of the financial assets held:

BEBRKRE
Consolidated and University
201946 /1 30 H
30 June 2019

PEE AR i &4 e M A REERA
2 AR R PR

B WR 1 (B

Investment fund classes: Number of  Total Net Assets ~ Carrying Amount included
Investee Funds in investments at Fair

Value through Statement

(LM T T ) of Comprehensive Income

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) as Income or Expenditure
s Hedge Funds 3 109,172,029 643,093
ZLEELES Multi-asset Funds 2 4,438,633 930,816
AR ES LS Unconstrained Bond Funds 1 76,517,915 503,206
Baptist Foundation Funds Baptist Foundation Funds 2 10,620,345 1,716

Fik Total 2,078,831




173 K &ELMHER (5)

Interest in Investment Funds (Cont'd)

e R

Consolidated and University

201846 H 30 H
30 June 2018

PG LA - Eie-e % = B R Y VAo e fBEE A
AT i 2 A B

S R T

Investment fund classes: Number of ~ Total Net Assets ~ Carrying Amount included
Investee Funds in investments at Fair

Value through Statement

(BAEHT 563 ) of Comprehensive Income

( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) as Income or Expenditure
ESRLIE- 0 Hedge Funds 3 107,635,466 626,207
FEHEREFEERESE  Real Fstate Investment Trust Funds 1 8,633,350 422,317
Baptist Foundation Funds Baptist Foundation Funds 2 10,955,549 1,742
Ay Total 1,050,266

DETERERSHEWENIRE - REEMERBREVEN - MBI AT B4 D) A4 -
All the above investment funds are passive investments only. The Group and the University has no control of,
influence on or financial support to any of these funds.

AR B A (R th 2 AR PR B R R A 51 -

The total net asset valuations are the best estimations obtained from various fund managers.

O ER R e B W] B IR S ) A B 4

The Group and the University can redeem units in the above investment funds upon request.

18. K& 18. Inventories
T 15 T R B (] A o/ ) B AL 4 B v Inventories are Chinese medicine, health products and

BRUE L GREREE L BB B . related books held for sale by subsidiaries of the Group.



19. JEW R =% ~ 78 430k 5 & 4% 2
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits

oty K&
Consolidated University

(LAt T et )
( ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
JRE MR 3k Accounts Receivable 86,365 93,922 110,655 119,191
TR Prepayments 21,579 27,395 20,785 26,938
K~ BEE M HABRE4  Utility and Other Deposits 10,920 10,603 10,255 10,073

118,864 131,920 141,695 156,202
Note:

JEWCHR 32 YA 25— 4F 108 R AT 7 —AF P T o K 0 2 S ATUR 80 T AT —AF I ERR A3 DR o AR A RS2 498 73 P % S MWK T o AP A9 1 IR I R T - Ot
2019461 30 H I A RERZIF FTHAB R -

The repayment terms of accounts receivable are within one year and expected to be recovered within one year. The majority of prepayments will be recognised as expenses
within one year. The Group and the University are satisfied that the receivable are likely to be recoverable. No loss allowance were recognised as at 30 June 2019 as the credit
risk were assessed immaterial.

201946 H30H - ENCHE# 177 ENT I 2 7l K 6 5 28 AW #K 2,6 304 70 R 940H 7T (20184 : 2,770 70 R650H7C) © MEYLHHEG 2\ 7] R &5 5 A AR #2915 0.8~ JEAEHT R 8 3
e

As at 30 June 2019, included in the balance of accounts receivable are amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts due from a joint venture of $26.3 million and $9.4 million
respectively (2018: $27.7 million and $6.5 million). These amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts due from a joint venture are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed

repayment terms.

20. M 20. Term Deposits
w2019 6 A30H > ZIHI 410 & As at 30 June 2019, three term deposits amounted to
IE (2018 4F : 400 BT ) B E WAE 3K $4.1 million (2018: $4.0 million) were pledged to a bank
W RATIE A R [E e B4 R E in lieu of the electricity deposits and letter of credit for the

FHR O HEHH o Group.



21.

BekFRAleRAMASHERE

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Cash Flow Information

B T S R B 4
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:
KA K%
Consolidated University

(A HET Tt )
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
BE RSRATAE Cash on Hand and Balances with Banks 274,230 266,263 208,163 201,513
FfER Short-term Deposits 107,184 7,036 107,184 7,036

381,414 273,299 315,347 208,549

TERAKBREEE LA RMEEHNAEEHHN > OERES R REEE - RAMEEH M A RIRE SRR
BRERBRBEERERMEAKAMETHRER BN AR -

The table below details changes in the Group's and University's liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

RSO
Consolidated and University

BURER  SUTEX st

Government Bank
Loans Loans Total

(LAt Toest) (Bit&E 27.1) (Kt 27.2)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) (Note 27.1) (Note 27.2)
201847 A 1H Asat 1 July 2018 143,680 48,091 191,771
TRRER Repayment of loans (15,964) 7,751) (23,715)
201946 A 30 A As at 30 June 2019 127,716 40,340 168,056
w201747H 1H Asat 1 July 2017 159,644 57,169 216,813
TER K Repayment of loans (15,964) (9,078) (25,042)
201846 A 30 A As at 30 June 2018 143,680 48,091 191,771




22.

i WA
Deferred Income

oty K&
Consolidated University

(LABHEToTRE)
( Expressed7li:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
B Current Liabilities
R HE BT 8k S K Deferred Government Subventions

(BiE 22.1) and Donations (Note 22.1) 450,676 465815 418,290 432687
LR Deferred Tuition Fees - 210,847 - 210,847
HABRIEYA Other Deferred Income 21,105 29,752 21,105 29,753

471,781 706,414 439,395 673,287

FERBEHE Non-Current Liabilities
JE ST BURF B S B 3K Deferred Government Subventions

(BFEE 22.71) and Donations (Note 22.1) 1,204,049 ) 1,204,049 )
st Total 1,675,830 706,414 1,643,444 673,287
Wik -
Note:

(1) KiBlHEEWA TR TE—F N PN -

The majority of deferred income is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

(2) KPR IR Z AR BRI (BB R 155 « BIFE ik - WRIGEAN FES -
HIRA (BB B IRAIER) 159805 - 201847 /1 1 H A BRC 00l % - LIG AR A2 [HEAEEE ] M2 1170 R [HMEERA ] 199 HIC e ERTA L 77 B RN

2B (M 1)) -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, adjustments to opening balances as at 1 July 2018 have been made, amounts previously included as "Deferred Tuition Fees" of $211 million
and "Other Deferred Income" of $9 million were reclassified from Deferred Income to Contract Liabilities and disclosed in Note 23 (see Note 1(b)ii)).
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23. AY AR

Fa NN o

Contract Liabilities

(PO
Consolidated and University

o} 30 June 1 July 30 June
(AT 7E5t)
( Expressedrinn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2018 102
B R Al Tuition Fees and Others 247,199 220,119 -
Wit :
Notes:

(1) KBHHE IR ZEREL B RIEN (BB BIRAER]D 1595 Rl # 201847 7 1H 2 414 -
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening balance as at 1 July 2018.

(2) FIRH (BB R F15566 LA [EERA ] 2 R R [HMEERA ] Hit22)  EHESES [EHE6T) GEHEE b)) -
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as "Deferred Tuition Fees" and "Other Deferred Income" under "Deterred Income" (Note 22) were
reclassified to "Contract Liabilities" (see Note 1(b)(ii)).

Q) P EAR TR R 1572 TN SRR I O

All Contract Liabilities are expcted to be settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

BWE 20194 6 H 30 HIEFEEN » FHBABEWEHWNT -

Movements in contract liabilities during the year ended 30 June 2019 are as follows:

N

Consolidated and University

(LW Tt )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )

#20184F7 A 1 H&Ef  Balance asat 1 July 2018 220,119

JAAEE R R TR E 2 1

A Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing in advance 874,400

R FEFRAE T N TERAEIIL A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of revenue
EYBEEHEAHIEARE  recognised during the year that was included in the (847,320
FE AL AERBY  contract liabilities at the beginning of the period

2019 4E 6 A 30 H456% Balance as at 30 June 2019 247,199
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24. { B & 0 f5 f

Provision for Employee Benefits

BAa KE
Consolidated University
(AT et )
( Expressedjiﬂn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
R TE Salaries and Wages 6,520 2,663 6,520 2,663
JEGTZ B K EAb 48] Leave and Other Benefits Accruals 162,686 160,950 162,629 160,897
A1 S B A Gratuity Provisions and Others 113,757 119,578 113,462 119,463
282,963 283,191 282,611 283,023
JEAT Payable
A 1A Rl R Within 1 year or on demand 166,865 172,671 166,580 172,584
WERE 2R More than 1 year but less than 2 years 104,324 96,850 104,257 96,769
N 2EERE 5ER More than 2 years but less than 5 years 11,774 13,670 11,774 13,670
116,098 110,520 116,031 110,439
282,963 283,191 282,611 283,023
25. 1§ BB {k 18 A 25. Employee Retirement Benefits
(a) 5 € & Fl B K2 5t & (a) Defined benefit retirement scheme

Bl 12 K E 1998 A B 4wt (f RS
[AREE D > J5— M K83k A
HEFIR R G5 #] o F 25.52% (2018 4F -
25.72%) MR 22 WAE 5 2 B sH#) -
AEEUEEEA RO > L& EfFROR
—BE RS WERKE Y G Rk
HE2 0 - ARaRmH R A KRR
HLR 15 FE SR 401 i ik s i

BB IRET B RG> AT vE
BB R ERABARE B AT
A ZIERHRF > BR S HOR K A B B A 5
G Yt A B R B ROR B R B 2 B
RS TR A R AL B T LA AT
EYINSEE 948 N2 Y- e v HE IR

SUMRIEA B B B iR A ¥at | BA B
ZREARC &Ml fRE LA Bt
MEAEE R — e fFoR R est#l -

The University makes contributions to a defined benefit
retirement scheme named the Hong Kong Baptist University
1998 Superannuation Fund ("the Fund"), which covers
25.52% (2018: 25.72%) of the University's full-time
employees. It is established under trust with its assets held
separately from those of the University. The Fund is funded
by contributions from the Fund members and the University

in accordance with a trust deed.

The Fund is classified as a defined benefit retirement
scheme under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance. Nevertheless, all benefits payable under
the Fund, except for death and total & permanent
disability cases, are based on the accumulated balance of
contributions made by the employee and the University
for that employee during his/her membership with the
Fund. The additional liabilities arising from death and
total & permanent disability benefits, which are based
on final monthly salary of the relevant employee, are
fully covered by insurance arrangements. Therefore, in

substance, the Fund is a defined contribution scheme.



O T A BT — UM 2R A (B R R
2017 4F 6 H 30 H#EAT » It BLEERG5E
JL — i (W) AIRARI AT - RIK
KA E S R BN ZREANFER A
& EE AT 100% A KB A BB A
R EAE - AR Z R 2017 4
6 130 HAEH 3 E N - 2 A48 1%
R LR AR TS ERUX
FEECRERT R4 -

A KB IRORS A R e AR
SIEEMER - REEREZ AR EM]
KA Sy 8,170 B I (2017-18 4F JE -
7,760 B0 )

5t 7€ 5B k2wt 3

KB ] I — AR R G R A &
w0 1) 23R BT Y A AR R
BRI aRESEH ) > BARESM
KB 5 AR R AR R R B A B T Rk
S o EEH B — 1 L 32 RE L LY
P IR KB 5B o FEMIRAE Bt #
R EN &R ot Ei =il
WA H) 5% ek - MR H R AR
B A b B 7 3 T o 5t #I K
2 HE % B P AE AL SRR ST B 5 A 1
B o RAEERE W B BIE L 2 0
KA Sy 3,540 B JC (2017-18 4F JE -
3,460 H L) °

(b)

The latest independent actuarial valuation of the Fund was
done as at 30 June 2017 by Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited,
a professional consulting actuary. The actuarial valuation
indicated that the University's obligations under the Fund
were 100% covered by the Fund assets held by the
trustees. The Fund assets would continue to be sufficient
to meet the Fund's obligations throughout the period of
3 years from 30 June 2017 providing that the contribution

to the Fund is made in accordance with the trust deed.

During the year, contributions to the Fund have been made
according to the recommendation made by the actuary.
Contributions paid by the University to the Fund for the
year amounted to $81.7 million (2017-18: $77.6 million).

Defined contribution retirement scheme

The University also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme ("the MPF scheme") as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees not covered by the defined benefit retirement
scheme. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees' relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately. Contributions paid by the University to
the MPF scheme for the year amounted to $35.4 million

(2017-18: $34.6 million).
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26.

27.

M i e 2 Tk JE T H

Accounts Payable and Accruals

e K&
Consolidated University

(AT TRt
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
JEAHIEZK R EEFTIEH  Accounts Payable and Accruals 102,447 131,159 100,370 130,066
HoAth FE AR ¢ Sundry Creditors 54,658 49,050 53,990 47,611
METEE 4 Sundry Deposits 18,584 17,064 15,856 14,594
JREASTERAE A3 28 (3 2 JH. Amounts due to Partners on Joint Courses 11,419 11,048 11,419 11,048
M el TR R4 Retention Monies Payable 17,992 12,569 17,992 12,569
HE SR UGC Holding Account 158,474 155,318 158,474 155,318

363,574 376,208 358,101 371,206
Note:

A iSO SR e 7 H B T A —AE R £

The majority of accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

B
Loans
KEEME 2 SHEEENT -

Details of the Group's loans are as follows:




27.1

27.2

B B %

Government Loans

BBHF TR ( FIRE [BURF) ) 808 FA— TR RIS AR -

The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ( "the Government ") provided one long-term loan to the University as follows:

TEZSHE D 77 T — P SR P 5812 AR BE R 4 7 2 3,600 0 B3 — A 2019476 5 30 H B3k 2 FEHd3 73 %14 & S - HAT B IR TR (575070 (20184 © 070) » i BHFE
120085218 104 A5 - CAF 200995 11 HERF B HEMERFE SR 104 - K (A BESBR BT 20109F 21 277 184 VAT REHE = AT 0 BRI E 20174 2 T A58 - S B0
Wt AT AFAERG FTRIAE AL I LA BORF9 B AR A9 FI 5 S FTFLBARBURF © 14201946 /130 H IEAFJE - BURFEESKZ AEFIFE/51.231% (2018:1.132%) © JE 2019961301 - 5
BERBRME T EESFLE A 25 1.277 (7T (20184« 1.4374570) R70HTT (20184 < 7047T) »
A loan of $360.0 million for the construction of a campus in Shek Mun offering associate degree programmes was secured by the properties on the campus with a net book value
after deprecation of $Nil as at 30 June 2019 (2018: $Nil). The loan which was repayable in ten equal annual installments from February 2008 had been extended for another 10 years
in May 2009. Pursuant to the extension, the outstanding loan balance is repayable in 18 equal annual installments from February 2010. The loan remained interest-free up to February
2017, after which, the outstandling loan balance has attracted an interest charge payable to the Government annually in arrear, at an interest rate equivalent to the cost of funding to
the Government. During the year ended 30 June 2019, the interest rate on Government loan was 1.231% (2018:1.132%) per annum. As at 30 June 2019, the outstandling loan balance
and loan interest payable amounted to $127.7 million (2018: $143.7 million) and $0.7million (2018: $0.7 million) respectively.

S P ON
Consolidated and University
(LAHET et )
( Expressed} Tn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
JREAF Payable
*1AER Within 1 year 15,964 15,964
REE 2 AN After 1 year but within 2 years 15,964 15,964
A 3 B 5EN After 2 years but within 5 years 47,894 47,893
A 5 R After 5 years 47,894 63,859
111,752 127,716
127,716 143,680
Note:

AT B K
Bank Loans
[P ON
Consolidated and University
(AW T Tt )
( Expressetﬁn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
JEAt Payable
P 1ER Within 1 year 7,612 7,773
NES 2 4ER After 1 year but within 2 years 7,787 7,631
REE 3 EE 5 ER After 2 years but within 5 years 12,692 19,640
5 ERE After 5 years 12,249 13,047
32,728 40,318
40,340 48,091
BAERKE
Consolidated and University
T4 B R4 JITHESF-22) B R A7 2
(LT nggh.ted-average We'ight.ed-average
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) effective interest rate 2019 effective interest rate 2018
FEMITEH  Bank loans at variable rate 2.15% 40,340 2.01% 48,091
Wit -
Note:

(1) 201996 30H » KL LM R EFIERBIEHT NI > %45 B RENIIRIET(H 7 1.750607C (20184 - 1.923(57C) »

As at 30 June 2019, the bank loans were secured by mortgages over the University's land and building with an aggregate carrying value of $175.0 million (2018:

$192.3 million).

Q) #E2019%F6/130H ILFIE - KL FHRITFILE AR 96 57T (2017-184 % © 1065 7T) »
During the year ended 30 June 2019, bank interest expense totalling $0.96 million (2017-18: $1.06 million) was incurred.
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29. ¢ LR

REEFBRY B RN TR
R - B E R - AR -
AR S SR A o KRB
& T % B e A — RS ECRAE S
DUEBIAE B > RESIANT -

fe 5l e

{5 B a2 48 52 5 O B A M AR A
ALK B I A 2 IS R R I B o K
5 0 8 T £ B A A RO
B SRAT A o LR B A R B
A B B S K Y £ R

T T AR BB o KSR R A
FEREETH > HEATRAT SO 420
2 T D B A M E A
TAIBELA L 5 sEhh > K IN g E
WA A A (5 B - FHERE
(5 K 10 8 LB AR 3l o R
R EEREAEER  EARE
A8 T A Y R A LR B
P 45 AL o bR Y
HZ MM REXTRTHLETA
L B R A S P A R B

ERRATAEF > B T ARERR - K2
IR A A0 0 B SRR MR A A7 AT O B AT R
P BB AR B AP A0 A B it A AR
DR ) A5 B o K [ R S R A £
T 5 <l 8K 0 ) 77 R

2R Al B SO BRI £ £ £
B SR - R B I S o [ Y
AN TR 2 A0 H5E 4 -

29.

(Q)

Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to
credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency and equity
price risks associated with financial instruments. These risks
are managed in accordance with the Group's guidelines
and policies, approved by the Finance Committee under the

Council, described as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its investments in debt securities and bank
deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

The Group mitigates credit risk by investing primarily in
instruments issued by banks or corporations with a minimum
credit rating of "A" as assigned by at least two international
credit rating agencies and performing periodic monitoring
on their credit ratings. Debt securities held for trading,
mostly of investment grades, are managed by experienced
and approved professional investment managers who
manage the portfolios through a comprehensive monitoring
system. The Group has no concentration of credit risk in
view of its investment in various instruments issued by

numerous banks or corporations.

In respect of bank deposits, internal policies have also been
set up to reduce risk involved, restricting deposits to be
placed with local and overseas financial institutions with
acceptable investment grade credit ratings so as to limit its
exposure to credit risk. The Group also limits total amount

deposited with each financial institution.

Credit risk associated with loans and other receivables is
immaterial to the Group and loss allowance is adequately

provided for.
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Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group has established a system to regularly monitor
current and expected cash demands to ensure it has
sufficient liquid funds to finance its ongoing working capital

requirements of both the short and the long terms.

TREF T REARNSAARREEFNRGBSAR - ZESMAGRDSAAMBBSRE @S HRRFE ZF
I > SR TR BRI R AR FIAE A5 B 2 RIER) DL R 22 T A R AR Y i L F A

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the Group's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Bif

Consolidated

(LA Toest)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars )

2019

BRARME RTER RTER O R2ER
B HEOR BN BESFER R5FK

R B st IR B R fR fi fiR
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BB Government Loans 127,716 134,801 17,547 17,340 50,841 49,073
AT Bank Loans 40,340 44,584 8,427 8,427 13,750 13,980
HIE 2
WE%E%? Accounts Payable 363574 363574 363574 . . .
ISR 2R
= | ..
@E;?g* J Pr%ng;g Benefits 282,963 282,963 166,865 104,324 11,774 ;
&M TH  Derivative Financial
ZEfE Instruments Liabilities 1,349 1,349 1,349 - - -
(K3E17.2  (Note 17.2)
815,942 827,271 557,762 130,091 76,365 63,053
(AT et )
( E><pressedJ IEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
BRI i [EW AR 2 R
fﬁ’i‘mﬁ% EZ%I @2%% ﬁS%W ﬁ’:‘S%fﬁ
R (B st IR % fE fER
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year Tyearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
ERF Government Loans 143,680 151,812 17,591 17,410 51,146 65,665
HATHEK Bank Loans 48,091 52,928 8,672 8,376 20,958 14,922
T E2d
WE%E%? Accounts Payable 376208 376208 376,208 . . .
WSH 2R
1 B AR A Provision for
B Employee Benefits 283,191 283,191 172,671 96,850 13,670 -
fiitE &M TH  Derivative Financial
ZaM Instruments Liabilities 1,027 1,027 1,027 - - -
(Ffit3k 1720 (Note 17.2)
852,197 865,166 576,169 122,636 85,774 80,587

1o



AEBEHZAHHM ()
Contractual maturities of outstanding liabilities (Cont'd)

TREY TRENERAERGEHOREREAMR - ZESMABERDAARNEASRE @D AANRFEZFIEK

> SR FE IR AR A B 2 FI%R) DLRRRAERNER A

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date of the University's financial liabilities,
I which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates prevailing at the reporting date) and the earliest date the University can be required to pay:

K&
University
(A HET TRt
( Expressedjli:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019
BHRMBL 1N BTEE R 2K
Remi  SEK E26W B5ER MBS
MR TE{E st IR R HE ¥ ¥
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
B Government Loans 127,716 134,801 17,547 17,340 50,841 49,073
WATEK Bank Loans 40,340 44,584 8,427 8,427 13,750 13,980
JEMIRS . Accounts Payable
RE=FIF and Accruals 358,101 358,101 358,101 - - -
1 B taf Provision for
Bl Employee Benefits 282,611 282,611 166,580 104,257 11,774 -
it &MTH  Derivative Financial
Z A Instruments Liabilities 1,349 1,349 1,349 - - -
(MtzE 1720 (Note 17.2)
810,117 821,446 552,004 130,024 76,365 63,053
(AW T TRt
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
GESES T N KR BUEE R 25K
RemRE  SEK E26W BSER MSEE
MR T st IR BE fh B
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BUR &R Government Loans 143,680 151,812 17,591 17,410 51,146 65,665
RITEK Bank Loans 48,091 52,928 8,672 8,376 20,958 14,922

JEMIES . Accounts Payable
JEFHIE B and Accruals

=Fgl Provision for

371,206 371,206 371,206 - - -

iy Employee Benefits 283,023 283,023 172,584 96,769 13,670 -
it 2mTH  Derivative Financial
Pa= Instruments Liabilities 1,027 1,027 1,027 - - -

(Mzt17.2)  (Note 17.2)

847,027 859,996 571,080 122,555 85,774 80,587
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(©)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets
and borrowings. The Group manages the exposure of
interest bearing assets through diversifying its investments
into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with
various tenures. As for interest-bearing borrowings, its
exposure primarily relates to floating rate bank loans as

detailed in Note 27.2 on the financial statements.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Nevertheless,
the Group has cash and cash equivalents, held-to-maturity
debt securities and trading securities denominated in

various foreign currencies.

In respect of the currency risk of financial assets denominated
in US dollar, the Group considers that Hong Kong dollar is
currently pegged to US dollar under the linked exchange
rate system adopted by the Government and that it is not
necessary to actively hedge its exposure to US dollar. As to
assets denominated in other currencies, the Group appointed
investment managers use forward foreign exchange contracts

to manage the foreign currency risk exposure.

n2



A B B R i
Exposure to foreign currency risk

VAR BRI R B KB B IR A5 50 0 A LM AE 2 il A FRUR I 2 M R T 15 0L
The following table details as at the reporting date the Group's major exposure to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Group's functional currency:

3
e
Consolidated
(BAFERH)
(ExprejEssed in thousands of dollars ) 2019
ESST NG Ly HO At i
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars ~ Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
#E Investments 421177 - 5,367 52,634 1,657,419 12,529
JEWIE 2K ~ TR Accounts Receivable,

V&L & Prepayments and Deposits 1696 916 21 >79 1,519 88
EMHEH - B4E Term Deposits,

TR S Cash and Cash Equivalents 16,902 50,189 1,122 659 16,743 523
JERTIEZ M ERHE E Accounts Payable and Accruals (2,377) (340) (5) (536) - 6)
ANy A Net exposure to currency risk 437,398 50,765 6,505 53,336 1,675,681 13,134
FRs T HKD equivalent 3,417,674 57,703 35,660 474,526 121,508 130,589
R Exchange rate @ 7.8136 11367 5.4819 8.8969 0.0725 9.9428
(BTFJERT)

(Expremssed in thousands of dollars ) 2018
F0 AR ST T Hot eSS
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
wg Investments 339,749 - 5,438 45,017 2,007,469 13,424
IR K ~ FEAHIE X Accounts Receivable,

P& Prepayments and Deposits 3495 600 80 319 3,215 92
EMEH - Bl4E Term Deposits,

TR F 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,423 2,194 1,104 722 11,019 553
FERHIEZ S MEFHEH Accounts Payable and Accruals (5,434) (2,346) 3) - - (364)
AN FR g P A Net exposure to currency risk 352,233 448 6,619 46,058 2,021,703 13,705
SR HKD equivalent 2,763,841 534 38,353 421,881 143,197 141,930

e 2% Exchange rate @ 7.8466 1.1920 5.7944 9.1598 0.0708 10.3561




Sh W R B K (4H)

Exposure to foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

LUR SRR B KRB A5 R I LUSMI A 2 B SR R I 2 S R i DL

The following table details as at the reporting date the University's major exposure to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the University's functional currency:

K&
University
(BF5Eat)
(Expressed in thousands of dollars ) 2019
ESTH ANRH LSS ST =™ ek
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
g Investments 421,177 - 5,367 52,634 1,657,419 12,529
TR 2K ~ FEFTIR K Accounts Receivable,

Y& & Prepayments and Deposits 169 634 21 >79 1519 88
EWHEH - B4E Term Deposits,

TR 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents 16,902 4,908 1,122 659 16,743 523
JEARTIRR S HERHE E - Accounts Payable and Accruals (2,377) (120) (5) (536) - (6)
AN B T A Net exposure to currency risk 437,398 5,422 6,505 53,336 1,675,681 13,134
ZRWIT HKD equivalent 3,417,674 6,163 35,660 474,526 121,508 130,589
[ER Exchange rate @ 7.8136 1.1367 5.4819 8.8969 0.0725 9.9428
(MFJEit)

(Expressed in thousands of dollars ) 2018
%70 ARH 5T o™ =5 ek
United
States Australian Japanese British
Dollars  Renminbi Dollars Euro Yen Sterling
g Investments 339,749 - 5,438 45,017 2,007,469 13,424
TEMOE K ~ FEAHIE K Accounts Receivable,

Y& & Prepayments and Deposits 3495 600 80 319 3,215 92
EMfEE Bl& Term Deposits,

A Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,423 2,194 1,104 722 11,019 553
RERTIEH % IEFTIEH Accounts Payable and Accruals (5,434) (2,346) 3) - - (364)
HMEE TR v AR Net exposure to currency risk 352,233 448 6,619 46,058 2,021,703 13,705
ZRWIT HKD equivalent 2,763,841 534 38,353 421,881 143,197 141,930
% Exchange rate @ 7.8466 1.1920 5.7944 9.1598 0.0708 10.3561
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(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from its equity investments classified as trading securities
(excluding debt securities). The equity price risk of these
investments are managed by qualified investment managers
using their in-house expert investment processes and market
research capabilities. The investment managers follow
the Group's investment guidelines in order to achieve
diversification of equity price risk among the investment
portfolios in different countries and industry segments.
The Group also monitors its risk exposure by carrying out
appropriate assessment on the investment strategies and

reviewing periodic reports from the investment managers.

As at 30 June 2019, the percentage of carrying amounts
of equity investments classified as trading securities
which are held by the Group (see Note 17.2) as analysed
by geographic markets in which the equity securities are

traded, are as follows:

HaRKE
Consolidated and University

2019 2018
% %
FEH United States 41.8 45.5
el Europe 24.1 20.5
A Japan 4.1 6.0
Hh B B A China and Hong Kong 12.9 10.5
LR Australia 1.1 1.0
Hoph 5 Others 16.0 16.5
At Total 100.0 100.0
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(f)

Fair value

Trading securities (excluding financial instruments with
embedded derivatives) are stated at quoted bid prices
at the reporting date. Dated securities, which are those
securities that the Group has the intention and ability to
hold to maturity, are measured at amortised cost less
impairment losses. The fair values of held-to-maturity debt
securities are estimated as the present values of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments. The fair values of financial instruments
with embedded derivatives are estimated on a mark-to-
market basis of the options embedded in the securities
plus the present value of the future guaranteed cash flow
that is discounted at current market interest rate. The
carrying amounts of short-term receivables and payables
are estimated to approximate their fair values due to short-
term maturities of these assets and liabilities. The fair value
of long-term bank loans approximates the carrying amount
because they bear interest at floating market interest rates.
The fair values of unlisted investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures cannot be reliably estimated

because of a lack of open market for such investments.

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
and the University's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs

used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.
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Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs.

The table below analyses financial instruments, and unlisted

equity investments measured at fair values as at the end

of the respective reporting periods on a recurring basis, by

the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value

measurements are categorised:

FERKE
Consolidated and University
2019
K g Ky — g Y — %EI\A:-

(WHET e ) B A A Alat
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RPN ARMEEFR Recurring Fair Value Measurements
BEGRE Investment Assets
B A R E Unlisted Equity Investments - - 7,988 7,988
MEE®R Trading Securities

1B Debt Securities 107,276 1,529,029 - 1,636,305

i Equity Securities 1,407,839 - - 1,407,839

/‘\‘ /\'_‘ E_ Y . . . .

1(1%%@1/\2 De/;lsvsezttl;/e Financial Instruments 410 189 i 2,306

HEHEE Investment Funds 1,434,502 316,613 327716 2,078,831

MESmTAEZ Derivative Financial Instruments

=V Liabilities - (1,349) - (1,349
HEE Total 2,950,027 1,846,189 335,704 5,131,920
2018
Ay 4 S — % Ky — % ‘%@\é

(Dl s B FEER B 8
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEWARMEMEFE  Recurring Fair Value Measurements
BEEE Investment Assets
W E S Trading Securities

&% Debt Securities 22,717 1,429,649 - 1,452,366

Jie Equity Securities 1,464,081 - - 1,464,081

b A R

mtg % BT HEZ De/-r\lsvseg;/e Financial Instruments 4868 2353 i 721

RERe Investment Funds 422,805 311,509 315,952 1,050,266

RitEEm TR Derivative Financial Instruments

=L Liabilities - (1,027) - (1,027)

Hast Total 1,914,471 1,742,484 315,952 3,972,907

TERE 201946 A 30 H & 20184 6 A
30 HIRG R > &0 REE% 2 B
BHEY -

During the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, there were

no transfers between each level of fair value hierarchy.
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The fair value of the securities under Level 2 is determined
by reference to the prices at the reporting date provided by
the investment managers or banks and have been translated
using the appropriate foreign currency rates at the end of

the reporting period.

The fair value of the investment funds at Level 3 represent
the investment funds managed by the fund managers. Such
investment funds are stated with reference to the net asset
value of these investments. A valuation report with analysis
of changes in fair value measurement is prepared by the

investment managers at each annual reporting date.

The fair value of unlisted equity investments in Level 3 is
determined based on the attributable net assets values. The
significant unobservable input includes the attributable net
asset value and the fair value increases with the increase in

the attributable net asset values.

The movements during the period in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

BAERKE
Consolidated and University
(LM T Tt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
I LT BRA G A B A

Unlisted Equity Investments
and Investment Funds

7 A VHZARMEE

B UCHE TR il BBl Y )
559 YRR (FERE 10)0)

i

TS A

s BT 2
B R BB s

i

6 H 30 HZARMEE

Fair value as at 1 July

Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Note 1(b)(i))

Additions

Net realised and unrealised gain recognised in
Statement of Comprehensive Income for assets
held at the end of the reporting date

Disposals

Fair value as at 30 June

315,952 285,063
6,674 -

. 12,527

13,123 18,362
(45) -
335,704 315,952
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(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the University's
financial instruments carried at amortised cost and their fair

value and the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed

below:
oty
Consolidated
20194F6/130H Z A REfE it it
Vg r-1N ¥ %
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2019 categorised into
2019 4 2019 4 B ot B
6 H30H 6 H30H
REE  AREE
Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts as at
as at 30 June
NI 30 June 2019
(LA HET s
( EX;T)ressed} iLn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019
FEEEM A 2 5%
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 2,000 i ) 2,000
oty
Consolidated
201856430 H 2 AL (H
BT
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2018 categorised into
2018 4 2018 4 Bk B =R
6 H30H 6 H30H
RmE  AAREE
Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts as at
as at 30 June
. 30 June 2018
(LAs¥TTst)
( Expressedjl?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018
FrH 2B A 2B
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities 2,000 2,000 ) ) 2,000




RE

University

20194F6H30H Z A R &
SRR TR

Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2019 categorised into

2019 4 2019 4 B B FE=M
6 H30H 6 H30H
WRWEE  AREE
Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts as at
as at 30 June
. 30 June 2019
(DL T 2Rt )
( Expressedﬂi:n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019
FrAZBMA 2 &% i i i i i
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities
KE
University
201846130 H Z ALl (HRHE
AR
Fair value measurements as at
30 June 2018 categorised into
2018 4F 2018 4E B B B
6 H30H 6 H30H
WREE  AAREE
Carrying Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
amounts as at
as at 30 June
. 30 June 2018
(LAsMEToCit )
( Expressedj?n thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2018

P 2FIWH 2 i
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities

B g o
e B

#2019 4 6 A 30 H » 7 H A R H4EFS
AEMEIT > MR REE EF/ R
50 B o A FTOC SR B 0 2R AT D/
B4 2,850 G (2018 4F : 47 2,070 #
Jo)°

(9) Sensitivity analysis

(i) Interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/

decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, would have decreased/increased

the Group's surplus by approximately $28.5 million (2018:

approximately $20.7 million).
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(ii)

fRa KRB

Consolidated and University

(B A EA )
( Expressedin}]:nillions of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
AR LT/ Wa%  ARLI/  BAR
(FWH) P (Tid) i
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(Decrease) on (Decrease) on
in interest Surplus in interest Surplus
rates rates
; 0.5% 32.1) 0.5% (23.9)
B Investments 0.5)% 32.1 0.5/% 239
- 0.5% 0.6) 0.5% 0.7)
BURFAK Covernment Loans 0.5)% 0.6 0.5% 07
P 0.5% 0.2) 0.5% 0.2)
AT SEaR Bank Loans 0.5)% 0.2 0.5)% 0.2
MR Ble Rk Term Deposits, Cash and 0.5% 4.4 0.5% 4.1
SR B4 Cash Equivalents (0.5)% @.4 (0.5% .1

AR 407 7 B S B
5 H B BB % H AR i
e J A T LB - AR
RIS > B % B 0 B BB
HEBAE 2 F — (B4R BE 5550 LI 6
TIPS TET TR

HEE 2 J By

#2019 4 6 A 30 H > Q17 B AN 50
ot 2 BEF T/ 3 5% A% 8/
RS I R BRI R 4 4,630 # T
(2018 4F : %9 3,370 #T) -

(ii)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The interest
rate assumptions represent the management's assessment
of a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date in the light of the

current interest rates level.

Foreign currency risk

As at 30 June 2019, if there was a 5% strengthening/
weakening in the relevant foreign currencies against the
Hong Kong dollar, it would have increased/decreased the
Group's and the University's surplus by approximately $46.3
million (2018: approximately $33.7 million).



fRa KRB

Consolidated and University

(B A EA )
( Expressedin}]:nillions of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
WX LTt/ Was R/ HER
(T#) i) (T 5 2
Increase/ Effect Increase/ Effect
(Decrease) on (Decrease) on
in foreign Surplus in foreign Surplus
exchange exchange
rates rates
; 5% 449 5% 329
Bt Investments (5)% 44.9) (5% (329)
JEIR X ~ Accounts Receivable, 5% 0.3 5% 0.1
TR e Hic 4 Prepayments and Deposits (5)% (0.3) (5)% 0.1
MR~ Bla ) Term Deposits, Cash and 5% 1.3 5% 1.0
EEEiEEN Cash Equivalents (5)% (1.3) (5)% (1.0)
L 2 o 5% 0.2) 5% 0.3)
AT X K e TE H Accounts Payable and Accruals (5)% 0.2 5% 0.3

Al R R A T B B < R B Y S
CNSlEE R AR SHEC RPN ) R
FEMRMEE 2 A T IR AT
A R By o T A T R R (4
Sl ) R R 5

Al K B B HRA A T R
A RE AR Y » S B it o B T 2 I R T
RAE R RFCE A B 2 MEA BT
XERTE Pt AR TR E L
MEA B 1t 70 A o

R B A ) 450 AL f 2 A 4
B 5 4 A5 2 5l 7 1Y S B JEURR: o

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been applied to the
Group's exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial assets in existence and outstanding
liabilities at that date, and that all other variables, in

particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent the Group's reasonable
estimation of possible changes in foreign exchange rates.
It is also assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the US dollar would not be significantly
impacted by changes in movement in value of the US
dollar against other currencies. As such, no analysis was
performed on the movement of the exchange rates between

the Hong Kong dollar and the US dollar.

The Group's appointed investment managers use forward
foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency

risk exposure on financial assets.
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(iii)

30.

i S AR A JaL By
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(i) Equity price risk

30.

As at 30 June 2019, if the equity price of its equity
investments classified as trading securities had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's surplus would have been increased/decreased by
$89.0 million (2018: $94.0 million) as a result of the changes

in fair value of the listed equity securities.

Capital Management

The University is a government subvented education
institution established in Hong Kong under Hong Kong Baptist
University Ordinance and is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, except as stated below. The
University's capital mainly consists of surplus accumulated
since its inception, donations, capital grants from the
Government, Government loans and commercial loans. The

objectives of the University's capital management are:

- to ensure that the University will be able to continue as
a going concern so that it can continue to provide whole
person tertiary education and related services to the

community;
- to support stable operation of the University; and

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the future

development of the University.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the University's
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital
were largely unchanged. The University mainly relies on
capital grants from the Government for campus expansion,
improvements, and redevelopment relating to UGC-
funded activities. Donations, operation surplus and
commercial loans are used to supplement any shortfall in
such projects, premises acquisition and campus expansion
and redevelopment relating to non-UGC-funded activities
as well as other activities of a development nature. The
spending of government grants is governed by the UGC
Notes on Procedures and related grant conditions and the
spending of non-Government funds is subject to internal

guidelines and policies. The University implements a
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31.

comprehensive system to manage its funds under clear
investment guidelines and strategies formulated with the
assistance of an investment consultant. For the surplus
funds of an endowment nature, the University sets annual
spending limits so as to preserve the long-term purchasing
power of the fund. Professional investment managers
are appointed to manage funds of a long-term nature
while those of a shorter term nature are managed by the

University under approved guidelines.

Related Parties Transactions

All transactions relating to purchases of goods and
services and capital projects involving organisations, in
which whether a member of the University Council or
the University's key management personnel may have an
interest or not, are conducted during the normal course of
business and in accordance with the University's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures. Donations
received from members of the University Council, key
management personnel, or organisations controlled
or significantly influenced by them were approved in

accordance with University's regulations.

During the year, the University entered into the following
transactions with its related parties in the ordinary course of

business:

Donations received from the University Council members,
the University's key management personnel and companies
controlled or significantly influenced by them amounted to

$0.2 million (2017-18: $0.2 million).

The University received administrative fee, consultancy
fee, management fee, licence fee and loan interest income
totalling $3.4 million (2017-18: $2.3 million) from its
subsidiaries and administration fee of $6.9 million (2017-18:

$7.2 million) from a joint venture.

The University paid for the services and goods from its
subsidiaries with a total value of $2.5 million (2017-18:
$2.8 million).
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(d)

201946 A 30 H > MHBAR K& (d) As at 30 June 2019, the amounts due from subsidiaries and

LG YON-SOE SOV a joint venture to the University amounted to:

(AT oest )

(ExpressedTiEn thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018

it g 2 ) Subsidiaries 29,315 29,723

B Joint Venture 9,371 6,498
38,686 36,221

TR 820 A ZIRAK D 2 SR - RS > Rk BpR

The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

A B R B A B I B W) Z IR SR A AE JE R B A KBRS - BRI B g & W (BEE 17.1 & 19) »
All the above amounts due from subsidiaries and a joint venture are included in Non-Current Investments and
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Deposits (Notes 17.1 and 19).

FEEMAR T MAME S

The total compensation to key management personnel” was:

(LABToest )
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
ARG & Salaries 40,190 37,368
FLR B AR F Short-term Employee Benefits 7,947 7,102
RIEEEEF Long-term Employee Benefits 6,519 5,806
54,656 50,276
* LTEEMAGAEREZES @A -
Key management personnel included members of the Senior Executive Committee.
KE L IAR B 10 &5 & K& 1998 & (f) The University's total contributions to Hong Kong Baptist
Baw B (R A% s, 170 & University 1998 Superannuation Fund ("the Fund") for its
(2017-18 4FJ : 7,760 HiJT ) employees amounted to $81.7 million (2017-18: $77.6 million).
KE T HAR B ) — (E AR IECE W 58 v (8) The University made contributions to the MPF scheme
A TR R BV ) B Y o AR & as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
FEEIEE AF N BBEE S 3,540 BT Fund Schemes Ordinance. Total contributions made for
(2017-18 4EJ¥ : 3,460 # T ) o the employees during the year amounted to $35.4 million

(2017-18: $34.6 million).
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33.

HAEEHKIE 32. Capital Commitments
20194 6 H 30 H > MR HDEHS As at 30 June 2019, outstanding capital commitments not
WEANZEEIEHAE  GEOT : yet provided for in the financial statements are as follows:
[P OR
Consolidated and University
(LM T Tt
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
B4 Contracted for 143,851 184,975
BRI R4 Authorised but not yet contracted for 1,460,669 212,659
1,604,520 397,634
mEMERE 33. Operating Lease Commitments
KEBEBE D) S EMER R — ¥ K The Group leases a number of properties under operating
WAL A 12 54 > I B A s leases. Most of the leases run for an initial period of 1 to
LB EL > B A RS 5 years with a renewable option upon expiry at which
FHRE o A EEE B E M time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
DR ER  WAHAHRE reviewed annually to reflect market rentals. None of the
wAHE - leases includes contingent rentals.
W 20194E 6 A 30 H > TEREREAT As at 30 June 2019, the future minimum lease payments
TS Y & 2L 70 ST RE S A B R AR 4 under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
HREENT follows:
BAE KE
Consolidated University
(BLEMT R )
( Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018 2019 2018
TR Within 1 year 14,923 10,884 14,137 10,038
REE 2 B 5 FN After 1 year but within 5 years 33,507 33,524 33,031 33,524
i 5 4 After 5 years 51,163 59,167 51,163 59,167
84,670 92,691 84,194 92,691
99,593 103,575 98,331 102,729
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34.

B

Taxation

ENEEINPN JEl U REEY

Income Tax in the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Group represents:

e
Consolidated

(LWt )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018
AAEFERIE (W) /S (Credit)/Charge for the year:
- FUFIE R - Hong Kong Profits Tax (60) 10

(60) 10

TR J HCA A RS DR B 2 Wl TR AL 2 28 5 B » SRR BRI IR 1) (55 112 %) 56 88 IR A FriaBida
e

The University and some of its subsidiaries limited by guarantee are approved charitable institutions exempted
from Hong Kong Profits Tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

KB O PR 2 ) T A VB R AR LU AT B R A o BB M A FILL 16.5% (2017-18 4R 16.5%) HIBLRF A A
AR o 52 Rl v B2 JEE 11 I 2 ) 4 o B O 5 B R IR A9 DA R R SR BT o S A IR UL 38 IR0 7 B AT B TR Y
SRR VERG B -

Subsidiaries of the Group are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is
calculated at 16.5% (2017-18: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of these subsidiaries for the year.
Subsidiaries of the Group with operations in the PRC are subject to the appropriate tax laws and regulations in the
PRC. Tax payable in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position represents provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax.

AR JE P e A A S S PR i 2 T A B R 2 SR AT

Reconciliation between tax expense and surplus before taxation at applicable tax rates:

e
Consolidated

(LWt )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars ) 2019 2018

BRI 2 Surplus before taxation 256,520 209,803

LAl N edted o s aplcale 1 sl a7 34080

. - in the jurisdictions concerned

T A B S 2 B Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 516,340 482,122

WERBURA Z BB 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (558,786) (516,592)
RHER M BIL 1R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 746 556

) AR R T HERRAY W HE B B B8 Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (82) (156)
TR DR AR R Over provision in prior years (65)

PRETi Income tax expenses (60) 10

#2019 6 H 30 H K& 2018 4F 6 H 30 H » REXEHY KK BN 2R 5 BARBIL e 18 0 IRe 1 26 B 3 KOR TR IR A
IS AR A -

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, there were no material unrecognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in respect of accumulated tax losses arising from temporary difference of the Group and the University.
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35.

(@

(b)

Significant Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are reviewed by the management
of the Group annually based on experience and changes
in external environment. The estimates and judgments that
have a significant impact on the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities are discussed below:

Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and residual values of the
Group's property, plant and equipment for determining the
annual depreciation charge are reviewed annually by the
management making reference to historical data of similar

assets.

Financial instruments

The estimates and judgments made by the management in
respect of the financial instruments held by the Group are

discussed in Note 29.

28
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36. B IR AE R Z BT~

& & B AR R T e A Ok Y

W

HEAMBEHRETIE DN Hl gt
WA & e WA T — e T e A
PR REERT O HIERMR R AR
2019 4F 6 A 30 H IR A2 B KA
IR A BB R A > BLAE DR AT AR BRR
[ T KB B B AT BORT YRR o

36. Possible Impact of Amendments, New

Accounting Standards and Interpretations
Issued but not yet Effective

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 30 June 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group and the

University.

JATN B HH BCHAR B b

()€ AR B AL

Effective for accounting periods

beginning

(Fris B Al R RS 16 58> HE 2019F1TH1H

HKFRS 16, Leases

(AT HE R 2015-2017 4F48 I 4F B O
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

(BN 28 SRIEHT - WS A7) BB A R R G 20194 1H1H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019

1 January 2019

20194 1H1H
1 January 2019

B B B E AL R BT~ BRI MR
B W UCHE R R 2 T
TR B T > R o B R SR )
55 16 9% 2 43 4 8 7] AR 3R SR A 2
HAEMBHREERERLE  ZEEM
BB E— BT SGREE o BERK
5 [0 B3 R s B SO YR DD SR 16 9%
9 FEAG OB SE A (R IR 40 % 5 e
R BB B B T AR B S
By 1k 0 58 FRURA AL 2 B K B2 8 H i
AR KBRS AT R S
HERA 2020 4F 6 H 30 H Z &5 & MH R
REUCH R SR EZ LS - KEE
BT RE B B R BOR SR A
BEIH o H R YE R OB AR AR A B
Bttt o

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far the Group has identified some
aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 30 June 2020. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the transition
options, until the standards are initially applied in the

financial statements.
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QU RE 1) TR > KB R L R AL
BN RAREHERQEHE > WHTP
HESBUAR T AHHELIETE
Ak B o R AR ) AR 2 AR ROR
HAFTSLARME -

TRMICE I B s MR 26 16 SRR &
ESREEDNGEN R RilEE 3 e 8
JRCEE R B o IR (7 i B R A
ISR 16 98— ALER A RFL M A i
[ 7 B R B AR L - B
BR IR 660 & THEE BT 5% - BRDRAE
NH 1% BLBLAT il A St B A
oLz Gt i 22 7 S8 B A R B AT vt
JEEL > RIAREAYBH 4R H > ARAH A%
R s ISR B o R 2 BL ALl 8 it
THE BB > Bt e s AR B 9 56 70 4 )
FE o WIRTERD % A A R AEK > KA
AR B AR A R BT E A 2 B
B RAEEEESE > mERERA
TR 1R 4% 2% 0 ME e R AR R A
HEREEZHREN - EREEELT
Jik o RELTTEEE AN It B
IR SR B (BPAELI A 12 A LR
H)MREEEEZHE > RZFER
o R R M A A AL R AR

CF s B 5 i 1 E ) ) 565 16 SRS B3
R B R R R R B RAL Y
Rt % e G E AL B AR
B RCETLE - BB & st
HECERE KA B AIR N Ry
BT A S5 A KB A T i S R
A2 iR o

CF o SO 5 i 5 R D 56 16 BEAF IR 2019
F7HH SRR AR A
B o vl P BS Hi YE R ) 5 16 9% A2 RF
KRELE R R AT AT REEL O i > SeRl AR
B R (S ) fLE A AT Al
] ANTE BEBR o K % o B8 DRI 7 o8 i

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in Note 1(i), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts
for the lease arrangements differently, depending on the
classification of the lease. The Group enters into some

leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease, the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding "right-of-use" asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is
12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in
which case the rental expenses would continue to be

recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting
as a lessee of leases for fixed assets which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the Consolidated and University
Statements of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over

the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group
plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the new

definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are

10
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f)FL 5 A B R 7 0 A 45
R AC T T AR R 2019 4 7 A
1THIHE -

W ke L M T MR A o R
T > R A ol S i o e
SIS 16 SRR A 1 1 th EOK A9 38
B o B EICRHTIILEY R EOR M A
B A G B 2019-20 4 EER
BB R R I E R -

entered into on or after the date of initial application. In
addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term

leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of funds as at 1 July 2019 and
will not restate comparative information. As disclosed
in Note 33, as at 30 June 2019 the Group's and the
University's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amounting to $99.6 million and
$98.3 million respectively, the majority of which is payable
either between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date or
in more than 5 years after the reporting date. Upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease
liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets of the
Group and the University will be adjusted after taking

account the effects of discounting, as at 1 July 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not
be material. In addition, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above will not have a material impact

on the Group's financial statements from 2019-20 onwards.
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